
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE: Friday 28th May, 2021

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: REMOTE

DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
PANEL

Councillor Lappin
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Lynne Thompson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent
Consultation, Engagement and 
Performance Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 3840
Fax:
E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1.  Welcome and apologies

 2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3.  Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th 
March 2021

(Pages 5 - 
10)

 4.  Matters Arising

 5.  Feedback and Evaluation report - SEND 
Spring 2021 Parent and Carer Survey

(Pages 11 - 
74)

 6.  Equalities Monitoring Analysis for the 
Southport Golf Links Consultation

(Pages 75 - 
78)

 7.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Allotments

(Pages 79 - 
88)

 8.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement (Pages 89 - 



and Consultation Activity - Ainsdale-on-Sea 
Vision

92)

 9.  Public Engagement and Consultation 
Activity - Equalities Monitoring

(Pages 93 - 
98)

 10.  Consultation Panel Workshop Update - 
Verbal

 11.  Any Other Business

 12.  Date of next meeting - Friday 9th July 2021, 
10.00 a.m.  Venue to be confirmed - either 
Assembly Hall, Bootle Town Hall with video 
conferencing in Southport Town Hall or 
Remote



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3 

1 
 

 
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

 

Meeting held on Friday 12th March 2021 
Remote Meeting 

 
 
Present:  
  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Byrom (CBE) 
Councillor Mhairi Doyle (MBE) 
Councillor Lynne Thompson 
Nigel Bellamy – VCF Sector Representative 
Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South Sefton and Southport 
& Formby CCGs 
Debbie Appleton, Director of Strategy & Performance, Merseyside Fire & Rescue 
Service  
Emeka Onuora, Risk & Quality Manager, Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
(LRCA) 
Joel Thornton – Sefton CVS, Sefton Young Advisors 
Martin Sarbutts, Facilities Development and Management Officer, Green Sefton, 
Sefton MBC  
Paul McCann, VCF & Equalities Officer, Sefton MBC 
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead, Sefton MBC 
Karen Heery, Admin Support, Sefton MBC  
Joanne Edgar – Admin Support, Sefton MBC 
 
Apologies: 
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 
 
The reports presented to the Public Consultation and Engagement Panel can be 
found here: 
 
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10034&Ver=4 

 

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies:  

Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 

 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

• No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests were received. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10034&Ver=4
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10034&Ver=4


Agenda Item 3 
 

2 
 

 

 

Action 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th February 2021 are a 
true and proper record. 

 

4. Matters Arising 

None were recorded. 

 

 

5. LCR – Race Engagement Equality Plan 

Emeka Onuora, Risk & Quality Manager, Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority (LCRA) delivered a presentation to the Panel 
on the LCRA Race Equality Programme. He outlined the 
background and context to the new approach to race equality that 
the Combined Authority is currently developing, the challenges to 
engagement work they are currently facing and asked for any 
ideas, advice and guidance on how these challenges can be 
addressed.   

Emeka said that they were very much at the start of the programme 
with activity including outlining their declaration of intent, building 
their evidence base and business cases, developing workstreams 
and key projects up to summer 2021 and looking to co-design 
solutions i.e. with regards to race equality training. 

Diane Appleton said that the presentation was very interesting and 
that there are a number of departments in Merseyside Fire and 
Rescue Service who could offer help or they could work together 
with LCRA.  The Panel were informed that the Fire Service had 
done well with positive action with a BAME rate of 5-6%, in line with 
the LCR population, and feels that their positive action people could 
learn from the LCRA work being undertaken and vice versa. Diane 
also suggested that Emeka should talk to their Equality and 
Diversity Manager.  She also highlighted the work of youth 
engagement staff in the community and suggested this was another 
engagement/contact route.  In addition, they have a recently 
created BAME Staff Network and suggested putting the Chair in 
touch with Emeke.  Diane stressed that she was keen to get 
involved and help in the ways suggested. 

Emeka was very appreciative of the offer to help from the Fire and 
Rescue Service and keen to take on board .  He mentioned that in 
a workstream around positive action, Merseyside Fire Service was 
cited as an example of good practice. 

Lyn Cooke said that the presentation was very useful.  She asked 
about the LCRA’s links with the Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCG’s), Health and Trusts, specifically whether they are already 
linked in?  Emeka interpreted this an offer to help and said he was 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Emeka Onoura 

 

Diane Appleton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 3 
 

3 
 

 

 

Action 

very happy to take this up.  Emeka mentioned that they are looking 
at race equality and at Health, and how commissioning can lever 
more race equality opportunities.  He said that they were conscious 
of the need to get the right people in the right organisations and is 
happy to take on the offer of help from the CCG’s and to link in with 
colleagues. 

Nigel Bellamy felt that it was a very interesting presentation and 
from a CVS perspective said that he was happy to talk to Emeka 
re. the community infrastructure issue.  He mentioned that they 
have a worker whose funding has come through the NHS and does 
a lot of work with the BAME  community.  He said that the nature of 
the population in Sefton is that a large percentage is migrant 
workers from Eastern Europe and said he is happy to discuss this 
with Emeka.  Emeka thanked Nigel for his offer and will be in touch 
with him. 

Jayne Vincent said she would share the presentation with the group 
following the meeting. 

Councillor Lappin offered some suggestions.  She suggested that  
the presentation should be connected with the Senior Leadership 
Team, specifically Stephan Van Arendsen, Head of Corporate 
Resources (including HR) and asked Jayne to forward the 
presentation to him.  In addition, that perhaps Emeka could prepare 
a statement should be created for  Ward Councillors on how they 
could help as she felt they should be involved.  Councillor Lappin 
recounted that in her Litherland ward there is an Indian Roman 
Catholic community which is now based in our Lady Queen of 
Peace (as their church was being defunct) and offered to share 
contact details for this group. She also suggested contacting the 
Communities department in Sefton, specifically Chris White. 

Jayne Vincent raised that she noticed in the presentation reference 
to avoiding duplication and consultation fatigue.  She said that one 
of the reasons the Consultation and Engagement Panel was set up 
was to try and avoid this and offered to give help in this area.   

Jayne mentioned that Paul McCann (also at the meeting) works 
with Chris White, and that Paul facilitates the Corporate Equalities 
Group and has been working with LCR re training. Paul McCann 
responded that the LCR work is on the agenda for every Corporate 
Equality Group, they are working with the LCR on the joint training 
and other projects and have shared some of Sefton contacts with 
the LCR group.  They are trying to engage with the project as much 
as possible to play a full role in the development of the proposals.  
Paul mentioned that it was recently raised at a meeting  that there 
is a Chinese community in Sefton who access a community facility 
in Liverpool.  This happens with a number of groups where 
Liverpool is seen as the centre. 

Emeka Onoura 

 

 

 

 
Nigel Bellamy 

 

 

 

Emeka Onoura 

 
Jayne Vincent 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 
 

 
Councillor Lappin 

Emeka Onoura 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 3 
 

4 
 

 

 

Action 

Councillor Lappin raised that she is concerned that residents should 
know what’s here for them and there is a need to develop projects 
in this area.  She thanked Emeka for an excellent presentation and 
feels they should look to develop projects in the future.  Emeka 
responded that he is happy to take up all the offers, especially that 
concerning connecting to Senior Leadership Team and thanked the 
Panel for their support.    

 
 

 

 

 

6. Feedback & Evaluation Report – Southport Golf Survey 

Martin Sarbutts presented a feedback and evaluation report on the 
Southport Golf Links Survey.   

The consultation was undertaken in October – November 2020  to 
seek the views of both golfers and non-players about the current 
management of the course and its potential development in the 
future.   The consultation was undertaken as part of a wider plan to 
develop both the course and existing facilities including the 
development of a driving range on site. The survey was conducted 
mostly online (in view of Covid) though paper copies were available. 
Around 175 responses were received. As a result of the survey 
responses, a soft market test exercise was undertaken in 
January/February 2021, to look for potential investment in the 
Whitehouse Café and the wider course or a combined offer for both. 
Submissions are being collated to put together a report to take 
forward. 

Councillor Lappin asked if there had been any analysis undertaken 
of the responses to the equality monitoring questions? Looking 
through the report she could not see any and feels equality 
feedback is an important area that needs to be monitored.  Martin 
responded that he has not undertaken any analysis on these 
responses.  Councillor Lappin requested that Martin undertake the  
analysis and feedback through Jayne Vincent.   

Jayne Vincent agreed that this is important.  Jayne raised that 
previously when the consultation plan had been presented to the 
Panel there had been a discussion re. the ageing  population and 
use of golf buggies at the course.  She suggested that there may 
be other things which come from an analysis of this data and also 
give an indication of who has taken part and whether there are any 
gaps.  Councillor Lappin said that this analysis may in turn help the 
business case. 

Jayne also raised that feedback from the Bootle golf course 
consultation mentioned the role of social media and how much that 
helped and asked whether this had assisted with regards to 
Southport consultation?  In addition, whether there was anything 
they would have done differently? Martin responded that social 
media worked for both, but not as much as for Southport.  There 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Martin Sarbutts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 3 
 

5 
 

 

 

Action 

the social media promotion had been accidental as Nick Doherty, a 
Sky Sports commentator had played the course with his father, and 
he had been asked to do a ‘shout out’ on social media, with 
assistance from Ollie Cowan from the Communications Team. With 
regards to doing anything differently, Martin was unsure that there 
was anything more they could have done.  The survey was 
promoted via ‘Stand Up for Southport’ and the Liverpool Echo.  It 
was only open for six weeks and in that time had received 175 
responses, which was a fairly good response given the timescale. 

Councillor Lappin suggested that a lesson learnt would be local 
celebrities who play golf participating and suggested looking 
through the existing membership for names.  Martin responded that 
they do have some contacts, including Paul Eales, who is not a 
member of the Links course, but is a Birkdale resident and member 
of Royal Birkdale.  Paul started his career at Southport as a junior 
professional and has done some promotional work for the course. 

Councillor Lappin thanked Martin for the report and requested that 
he send the equality analysis to Jayne. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Martin Sarbutts 

7. Update Report – SEND 

Jayne Vincent presented an update report on SEND (Special 
Education Needs and Disabilities) consultation conducted with 
parent and carers.  

Summary of activity 

• A baseline survey was carried out in 2019 with 254 
responses.  Results were analysed and shared with SEND 
Continuous Improvement Board which informed a 
programme of activity which has seen changes to services 
and support. 

• A short survey was undertaken in 2020 (deferred to 
September due to lockdown), consisting of 7 questions 
correlated to the indicators in the Improvement Plan.  This 
had a similar response rate with improvements in some 
areas/more work needed in some areas. 

• SEND Continuous Improvement Board agreed to run a full 
survey in spring 2021, which is now live. The survey has the 
same questions as 2019 with 1 extra question about the 
impact of Covid and how long parents/carers/children/young 
people have been receiving SEND support services – less 
than twelve months, over twelve months and  more than 
three years.  This question will potentially help to filter 
responses, to see if things are improving or not. 

• To promote participation the Board agreed to a prize draw 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 3 
 

6 
 

 

 

Action 

(three x £50 shopping vouchers) and extra resource to 
contact parents and carers to help them complete the survey 
over the phone.  This activity has been modified as people 
prefer to complete the survey themselves, however the 
personal contact has been useful to raise awareness of the 
survey, encourage participation and if they give their email 
address, consultation reports and useful information can be 
shared. 

• The survey closes on 26th March, followed by analysis and 
reporting back to the SEND Board and Co Production sub 
group in April. 

Councillor Lappin said it would be good to feedback to the panel so 
they can see the results and find out what worked. 

Lyn Cooke thought that the reports were really good. She asked 
whether they are working with front line health professionals to 
champion the survey? Jayne responded that they have a contact 
group of partners and organisations across the health system who 
are linked to support and promote this.  Lyn also asked whether it 
is possible to provide an update for the CCG committee on this 
activity? Jayne to provide the update.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 

 

 

 
Jayne Vincent 

8. Any other Business 

Debbie Appleton informed the group that the Merseyside Fire and 
Rescue Service has an ongoing consultation on its integrated risk 
management plan 2021-24 which is open till 24th May 2021 on their 
website www.merseyfire.gov.uk . In addition to the survey, they are 
also accepting emails and phone calls and encouraged 
participation 

Councillor Lappin asked Debbie to send the link through so this can 
be shared with the Panel members.    

Jayne Vincent gave a reminder for the forthcoming Panel workshop 
on Friday 26th March to review standards and membership.  The 
Officer Evaluation will be closing on 12th March and Jayne will be 
preparing papers and sending out information in advance of the 
meeting.  Councillor Lappin said that she was looking forward to 
seeing everyone at the workshop. 

 

 

 

 

 

Debbie Appleton 

9. Date and time of next Meeting 

Friday 26th March 2021, 10.00 a.m. Panel workshop – remote 

meeting  

 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3

http://www.merseyfire.gov.uk/
http://www.merseyfire.gov.uk/


Agenda item 5 

Page 1 of 7 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 28th May 2021 
 
Title: Feedback and Evaluation report – SEND Spring 2021 Parent and 

Carer Survey 
 
Report of:  Jayne Vincent – Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To provide feedback on the SEND Spring 2021 Parent and Carer Survey  
 
 
 1.2 The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports 

in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation 
and will consider: - 

 
• How the activity was carried out; 

 
• the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process; 

 
• The number of people who took part and the costs of the different 

methods of getting them involved;  
 

• How successful different methods were at getting the views of people 
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and 
people with disabilities; 
 

• How the results will be fed back to the public; and 
 

• How will the results influence policies and service plans. 
 
 

2.      Name of issue you were consulting on 
 

2.1 As part of the governance of the SEND Continuous Improvement 
Board, a sub group has been established for co-production, 
communication and consultation to provide assurance to the Board 
that: 

 
i) the voices of children and young people are heard 
ii) regular engagement sessions are being held with Parent Carer 

Forum and partners 
iii) parents and carers are involved in the identification of joint 

activity  
iv) trust and confidence in the system is growing and that corrective 

action is put in place where necessary 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Agenda item 5 

Page 2 of 7 

v) Parents and Children and Young People have had input into the 
Performance and Quality Framework 

 
 2.2 In March 2021 a third SEND Parent and Carer survey took place on 

behalf of the SEND Continual Improvement Board.  The survey used the 
same questions as a baseline survey in November 2019 with a couple of 
extra questions added to understand how long parents and carers were 
receiving SEND support for their child/young person and any impact of 
COVID-19 during the past twelve months.  A short survey took place in 
September 2020 to ‘test the temperature’ as to whether parents and 
carers felt things were improving or not. 

 
 2.3 The survey Task and Finish group, which included a representative from 

the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum, also looked at different ways to 
increase the response rate and the SEND Continual Improvement Board 
agreed to having some extra resource to contact parents and carers 
direct to complete the survey with them and to having 3 x £50 shopping 
vouchers as part of a prize draw. 

 
 
3. The Consultation Process 
 

3.1 It was agreed that the Spring 2021 survey would be an online open 
survey on the Council’s online consultation hub and that the survey and 
a feedback flyer (appendix 2) would also be promoted via the Sefton 
Parent and Carer Forum membership, and through a network of 
distributors including:  

 
• All school’s admin teams and all school’s Headteachers for SENCO’s  
•  SEND Co-production, Communication and Engagement Sub-Group 

partner members  
• Every Child Matters Forum Coordinator  
• Aiming High Coordinator  
• Head of Education Excellence (for School’s newsletter)  
• Healthwatch Sefton (for website)  
• NHS South Sefton and NHS Southport & Formby CCG (for website)  
• Sefton Council social media  
• Promoted on the Local Offer.  

 
3.2 As mentioned above, some additional resource was available to 

support with completing the survey over the telephone with a sample of 
parents and carers who have been engaged with SEND support and 
services for less than 12 months and a sample of parents and carers 
who had been engaged for more than 12 months. Following staff 
briefings, this commenced early March 2021, with every parent and 
carer being called up to three times, if there wasn’t a response to the 
original call.  Some parents and carers completed the survey over the 
telephone, but many of the parents contacted said that they would 
complete the survey themselves and where provided the link to the 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



Agenda item 5 

Page 3 of 7 

survey.  After the first week, it was agreed that the additional resource 
would contact the parent and carers and raise awareness of the survey 
(and provide the link if needed) and complete the survey over the 
telephone if the parent and carer needed support or didn’t have access 
to technology/Wi-Fi. 

 
3.3 The survey was available for completion from the 1st – 26th March 2021.   

 
 
4. Summary of the Consultation Results 

 
4.1 Sefton has 2,061 children and young people with an EHC Plan and 

there are currently 186 open EHC assessments. The survey was 
completed by 273 respondents, giving us a response rate of 12%. 
Based on these figures we can also calculate the margin of error which 
is 6%. 

 
4.2 A margin of error provides a percentage figure by which the results of 

the survey may differ from the views of the wider group. As not all of 
those that are engaged in SEND services in Sefton responded to the 
survey the margin of error provides us with a range of values above 
and below our sample statistic (the consultation). The percentage 
figures that are included in the full consultation report (appendix 1) 
could therefore be 6% higher or lower amongst the wider group of 
SEND service users. 

 
4.3 There were several sections to the survey and the Education section 

received the largest response rate, with response rates reducing in the 
Health section and further still with the Social Care section.  A large 
proportion of respondents either did not answer or indicated that the 
Social Care related questions were not applicable to them. Of the 2,061 
children/young people with an EHC Plan 313 are known to Children’s 
Social Care. Therefore, the lower response rate to Social Care related 
questions is not surprising. Examples of Social Care services include; 
Aiming High, Respite (Springbrook), the Children with Disabilities 
Team, Children’s Social Care and Early Help. 

 
4.4 Analysis of this consultation did breakdown the responses to the 

questions according to the length of engagement of the respondents, it 
should be noted that this breakdown decreases the sample size and so 
the margin of error is increased, and any apparent trends are therefore 
less reliable.  Where there seems to be a correlation, this is referenced 
in the report, as are quotes from parents and carers who report that as 
they are newer to services. 

 
4.5 Of those people who responded to the equality monitoring questions: 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Agenda item 5 

Page 4 of 7 

 The responses received covered the age range of children and young 
people from 0-25 years, with the majority school age children.  Just 2% 
were from the 20 – 25 age group.   

 Children and young people have a broad spectrum of (multiple) needs, 
with 76% having more than one assessed need. Autism was the most 
prevalent with 57% of children and young people having this as an 
identified need. 

 48% of the respondents classified their child/young person’s ethnicity 
as White Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern Irish, with a further 37% 
classifying their ethnicity as White Irish/British. Just over 1% identified 
as White European. Over 3% of respondents’ children/young people 
identified as either White and Asian, Mixed Ethnic Background, Irish, 
White and Black African or White and Black Caribbean. 

 66% of the respondents’ children/young people were identified as 
male, 26% as female and less than 1% as non-binary. Just under 91% 
are living in the gender they were given at birth and less than 1% not 
living in the gender they were given at birth. 

 Just over 7% of the responses suggested that although their 
child/young person had SEND, they were also young carers. 

 
 
4.4 A summary from the quantitative analysis and qualitative feedback is 

as follows: 
 

• Across the system, most respondents are reporting that written information 
includes a named contact; 
 

• Many parents and carers feel listened to in a calm and respectful manner and 
the language used by professionals is positive and constructive; 

 
• Parents and carers are satisfied with the way that SENCO’s are working 

together with the Education settings, however feel that contact with the parent 
and carers can be improved and they would benefit from some additional 
training; 

 
• In Health, satisfaction was highest for Physios, Occupational Therapists and 

School Nursing, with parents and carers reporting that their needs are met. 
Over half of respondents were dissatisfied with CAMHS and Paediatricians, 
indicating that their needs are not met, monitoring and assessment is not 
taking place and waiting times are too long; 

 
• Some pathways are improving, however parents and carers are reporting that 

there are some areas that require improvement, for example Foetal Alcohol 
Spectrum Disorder (FASD), which would benefit from an increased 
awareness and a pathway; 

 
• Many of the respondents are not aware of the Designated Clinical Officer 

(DCO) and their role; 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Agenda item 5 

Page 5 of 7 

 
• Satisfaction levels are very high with Aiming High, Springbrook and the 

Special Education Needs and Disabilities Information Advice and Support 
Services (SENDIASS); 

 
• More than half of respondents have used the Local Offer and SENDIASS in 

the past, but many haven’t used the service or accessed the website in the 
past 6 months; 

 
• Parents and carers are reporting that there is some improvement to the Local 

Offer but there are still some issues with navigation; 
 

• Parents and carers are reporting that they are unaware of the social care 
services available to them as a family, including those for young people, aged 
over 18 years and with different needs, the EHCP process and direct 
payments;  

 
• There is a mixed response as to whether the ‘SEND System’ is improving.  

There are positive experiences and areas where parents and carers feel could 
be improved.  Just under half of the respondents reported they are ‘not sure’, 
some of these are new to the SEND system; and 

 
• COVID 19 and the lockdown has impacted families across the SEND system 

with delays to appointments and assessments, contact and emotional and 
social support for both the child/young person and the parent and carer. 
 

 
4.5 The full Consultation Report provides comprehensive detail of both the 

quantitative findings and qualitative analysis, along with graphical data 
as an appendix.  

 
 4.6  The quantitative findings have been used for a performance dashboard, 

also shared with the SEND Continual Improvement Board, which indicates 
performance against six key performance indicators in the Improvement 
Plan. The findings show that in five areas there is improvement since the 
baseline survey in November 2019 and one area where levels remain the 
same. The findings from the Spring 2021 survey will provide the SEND 
Continual Improvement Board with an indication of the areas that are 
improving and areas where further attention is needed.  

 
 
5. Feedback 
 
 5.1 The findings have been shared with the SEND Continual Improvement 

Board and the Coproduction, Communication and Consultation Sub-
group.  The findings have also been shared with the Sefton Parent and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Agenda item 5 

Page 6 of 7 

Carer Forum and stakeholders identified in 3.1.  The report has also been 
uploaded on the Local Offer.  

 
6. Future engagement 
 
 6.1 The SEND Coproduction, communications and consultation sub-group will 

consider how to increase participation in any future surveys and further 
engagement as part of other workstreams and developments and how to 
keep parents and carers updated of the work undertaken as a result of 
their feedback from this survey and other engagement activity.  

 
7. Recommendations 
 

 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to 
 
  a) Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms 
 
  b)  Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and 

Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be 
uploaded onto the Consultation Hub. 

 
  c) Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update 

the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result 
of the consultation feedback. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Distribution: Final and Approved  

 

1 

 

  

 
 
 

SEND Consultation 
 
Feedback from the 2021 Public 
Consultation Exercise on Special 
Educational Needs and/or Disabilities 
(SEND) Local Area Provision in Sefton 
 

 

 

 

 

Released: April 2021 

 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent and Joshua Cross 
Commissioning Support & Business Intelligence Service 
Data, Insight, Business Intelligence, & Performance 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

2 
 

Document Control 

 

Issue/Amendment Record 

Version Date of Issue Reason for Issue 

V0.1 13/04/2021 Internal draft for distribution and comment 

V1.1 28/04/2021 Final and Approved 

   

 

Document Ownership 

Role Name/Title 

Authors Jayne Vincent 

Consultation and Engagement Lead 

Joshua Cross 

Management Trainee 

Release 
Authority 

Wayne Leatherbarrow 

Service Manager - Performance & Intelligence  

Location  

 

Distribution 

Elected Members 

Interim Director, Children’s Social Care and Education 

Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Head of Education Excellence 

Head of Communities 

Head of Strategic Support 

NHS South Sefton CCG, NHS Southport and Formby CCG and NHS Liverpool CCG Designated Clinical Officer 
(DCO) 

Members of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 

Sefton Health and Wellbeing Board 

Parents and Carers 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

3 
 

Contents 

Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………..4 

Summary of Quantitative and Qualitative Analysis ............................................................ 11 

Complaints Analysis........................................................................................................... 23 

Annexe.1 ............................................................................................................................ 24 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Education Questions ......................................... 24 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Health Questions ............................................... 27 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Social Care Questions ....................................... 30 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Other Questions ................................................ 33 

Other Graphs .................................................................................................................. 34 

Annexe 2…………………………………………………………………………………………  40 

    Feedback Flyer……………………………………………………………………………….  40 

 
 

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

4 
 

Introduction 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide an initial overview of the views and opinions of the 
parents and carers that responded to the public consultation on Special Educational 
Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in Spring 2021.  This is the third consultation activity 
relating to SEND since the 2017 SEND inspection and subsequent 2019 re-visit; an 
equivalent baseline survey taking place in November 2019 and a shorter ‘temperature 
check’ survey taking place in September 2020.  
 
 
Background and context 
 
As part of the governance of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board, a sub group has 
been established for co-production, communication and consultation to provide assurance 
to the Board that: 
 
i) the voices of children and young people are heard 
ii) regular engagement sessions are being held with Parent Carer Forum and partners 
iii) parents and carers are involved in the identification of joint activity  
iv) trust and confidence in the system is growing and that corrective action is put in 

place where necessary 
v) Parents and Children and Young People have had input into the Performance and 

Quality Framework 
 
The 2019 baseline survey was co-designed with representatives of the Sefton Parent and 
Carer Forum and sent direct to over 1600 parent and carers who child/ren had an 
Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP). This survey provided partners with a baseline 
for Action 4 of the SEND Improvement Plan to monitor experience, involvement and 
satisfaction around the key areas of Education, Health, Social Care, information provision 
and on how the system is working together. This survey received 254 responses (16%) 
and a consultation report was presented to the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 
(SENDCIB) in January 2020. 
 
The aim of the mid-year shorter survey was to capture the parent and carer opinion of the 
local area provision and to track the perception of the impact of the reforms identified in 
the SEND Improvement Action Plan. Recognising the challenges of 2020, the Board 
agreed to postpone the survey from June until September and acknowledged that the 
responses may be influenced by the experiences of COVID/lockdown.  The online survey 
was carried out in September 2020 and was completed by 243 respondents which is a 
13% response rate and a consultation report was presented to the SEND Continuous 
Improvement Board in November 2020. 
 
The baseline survey in 2019 helped to provide the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 
with a baseline to monitor experience, involvement and satisfaction around the key areas 
and the Spring 2021 survey was a duplicate survey, with a couple of extra questions the 
Board wanted to include to help understand the length of time parents and carers (and 
their child/young person) has been receiving SEND support and services and also to 
understand any impact COVID may have had during the past 12 months. 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

5 
 

The survey task & finish group which includes a representative of the Sefton Parent and 
Carer Forum, the Consultation and Engagement Lead and the SEN & Inclusion Policy 
Development Officer met to plan the Spring 2021 survey and in doing so, also discussed 
how to increase the response rate.  Two proposals were made to the SEND Continuous 
Improvement Board about having a prize draw and increasing resource to carry out 
telephone surveys with parents and carers. 
 
The Board agreed to having 3 x £50 shopping vouchers and to support with additional 
resource for the telephone surveys. 
 
 
 

Consultation Methodology. 
 

It was agreed that the Spring 2021 survey would be an online open survey on the 
Council’s online consultation hub and that the survey and a feedback flyer (appendix 2) 
would also be promoted via the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum membership, and through 
a network of distributors including:  
 

• All school’s admin teams and all school’s Headteachers for SENCO’s  

•  SEND Co-production, Communication and Engagement Sub-Group partner 
members  

• Every Child Matters Forum Coordinator  

• Aiming High Coordinator  

• Head of Education Excellence (for School’s newsletter)  

• Healthwatch Sefton (for website)  

• NHS South Sefton and NHS Southport & Formby CCG (for website)  

• Sefton Council social media  

• Promoted on the Local Offer.  
 

As mentioned above, some additional resource was available to support with completing 
the survey over the telephone with a sample of parents and carers who have been 
engaged with SEND support and services for less than 12 months and a sample of 
parents and carers who had been engaged for more than 12 months. Following staff 
briefings, this commenced early March 2021, with every parent and carer being called up 
to three times, if there wasn’t a response to the original call.  Some parents and carers 
completed the survey over the telephone, but many of the parents contacted said that they 
would complete the survey themselves and where provided the link to the survey.  After 
the first week, it was agreed that the additional resource would contact the parent and 
carers and raise awareness of the survey (and provide the link if needed) and complete 
the survey over the telephone if the parent and carer needed support or didn’t have access 
to technology/Wi-Fi. 
 
The survey was available for completion from the 1st – 26th March 2021.   
  
 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

6 
 

Summary of Quantitative Analysis 

 
Quantitative analysis means, to measure by quantity rather than quality. When we do 
quantitative analysis, we are exploring facts, measures, numbers, and percentages. 
 
Sefton has 2,061 children and young people with an EHC Plan and there are currently 186 
open EHC assessments. The survey was completed by 273 respondents, giving us a 
response rate of 12%. Based on these figures we can also calculate the margin of error 
which is 6%. 
 
A margin of error provides a percentage figure by which the results of the survey may 
differ from the views of the wider group. As not all of those that are engaged in SEND 
services in Sefton responded to the survey the margin of error provides us with a range of 
values above and below our sample statistic (the consultation). The percentage figures 
that you will see below could therefore be 6% higher or lower amongst the wider group of 
SEND service users. 
 
A large proportion of respondents either did not answer or indicated that the Social Care 
related questions were not applicable to them. Of the 2,061 children/young people with an 
EHC Plan 313 are known to Children’s Social Care. Therefore, the lower response rate to 
Social Care related questions is not surprising. Examples of Social Care services include; 
Aiming High, Respite (Springbrook), the Children with Disabilities Team, Children’s Social 
Care and Early Help. 
 
The equalities questions were optional for respondents. The analysis of these questions 
(Section 1) include the figures for those that indicated that a question asked was not 
applicable to their circumstances or chose not to answer. However, for the remaining 
sections, 2,3,4,5 and 6 the figures presented have been accordingly adjusted to reflect an 
accurate view of those that did respond. 
 
The questionnaire was themed around 6 key areas: 
 

1. General Information 
2. Education 
3. Health 
4. Social Care 
5. SEND Information, advice and guidance 
6. SEND ‘System’ (the end to end process of assessment to provision) 

 

Overall Headlines  
 
A summary from the quantitative analysis and qualitative feedback is as follows: 

 

• Across the system, most respondents are reporting that written information includes 
a named contact; 
 

• Many parents and carers feel listened to in a calm and respectful manner and the 
language used by professionals is positive and constructive; 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

7 
 

 

• Parents and carers are satisfied with the way that SENCO’s are working together 
with the Education settings, however feel that contact with the parent and carers 
can be improved and they would benefit from some additional training; 

 

• In Health, satisfaction was highest for Physios, Occupational Therapists and School 
Nursing, with parents and carers reporting that their needs are met. Over half of 
respondents were dissatisfied with CAMHS and Paediatricians, indicating that their 
needs are not met, monitoring and assessment is not taking place and waiting times 
are too long; 

 

• Some pathways are improving, however parents and carers are reporting that there 
are some areas that require improvement, for example Foetal Alcohol Spectrum 
Disorder (FASD), which would benefit from an increased awareness and a pathway; 

 

• Many of the respondents are not aware of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) 
and their role; 

 

• Satisfaction levels are very high with Aiming High, Springbrook and the Special 
Education Needs and Disabilities Information Advice and Support Services 
(SENDIASS); 

 

• More than half of respondents have used the Local Offer and SENDIASS in the 
past, but many haven’t used the service or accessed the website in the past 6 
months; 

 

• Parents and carers are reporting that there is some improvement to the Local Offer 
but there are still some issues with navigation; 

 

• Parents and carers are reporting that they are unaware of the social care services 
available to them as a family, including those for young people, aged over 18 years 
and with different needs, the EHCP process and direct payments;  

 

• There is a mixed response as to whether the ‘SEND System’ is improving.  There 
are positive experiences and areas where parents and carers feel could be 
improved.  Just under half of the respondents reported they are ‘not sure’, some of 
these are new to the SEND system; and 

 

• COVID 19 and the lockdown has impacted families across the SEND system with 
delays to appointments and assessments, contact and emotional and social support 
for both the child/young person and the parent and carer. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

8 
 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Of the 273 respondents, 61% had been engaged with SEND for more than 3 years, 25% 
between 1-3 years and 14% less than 12 months. 1 respondent did not answer.  
 
Analysis of this consultation did breakdown the responses to the questions according to 
the length of engagement of the respondents, it should be noted that this breakdown 
decreases the sample size and so the margin of error is increased, and any apparent 
trends are therefore less reliable. The breakdown of responses for length of engagement 
can be seen in Annexe 1. 
 
76% of respondents had either an EHCP or SEN Support Plan and 8% were currently in 
the process of being assessed for an EHCP. The remaining 15% of respondents did not fit 
into any of these categories. 
 
The responses received covered the age range of children and young people from 0-25 
years. Most of the respondents’ children/young people were either 5-11 years (44%) or 12-
16 years (44%). 4% were 0-4 years, 7% were 17-19 years and just 2% were 20-25 years. 
 
Children and young people have a broad spectrum of (multiple) needs, with 76% having 
more than one assessed need. Autism was the most prevalent with 57% of children and 
young people having this as an identified need, this was followed by Sensory Processing 
Disorder (40%) and then Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder/Attention Deficit Disorder 
(29%). 
 
Children and young people attend a broad range of education settings. 54% of 
respondents’ children/young people attend either a mainstream primary or secondary 
school. 23% attended a Local Authority Special School. 
 
48% of the respondents classified their child/young person’s ethnicity as White 
Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern Irish, with a further 37% classifying their ethnicity as 
White Irish/British. Just over 1% identified as White European. Over 3% of respondents’ 
children/young people identified as either White and Asian, Mixed Ethnic Background, 
Irish, White and Black African or White and Black Caribbean. 10% preferred not to provide 
an ethnic background or did not respond to the question. 
 
66% of the respondents’ children/young people were identified as male, 26% as female 
and less than 1% as non-binary. Just under 91% are living in the gender they were given 
at birth and less than 1% not living in the gender they were given at birth. 64% of 
respondents classified their child/young person as heterosexual, 32% of respondents did 
not answer this question.  
 
Just under 49% of the respondents stated that their child/young person’s religious belief 
was Christian and more than 39% had no religious belief. Less than 1% gave their 
religious belief as Muslim and 11% did not respond/preferred not to answer the question. 
 
Just over 7% of the responses suggested that although their child/young person had 
SEND, they were also young carers. 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

9 
 

The quantified responses to each of the questions asked are detailed in Annexe 1. 
Respondents reaction to or feeling about something is captured in the qualitative analysis. 
 
 

2. EDUCATION 
 
Education related questions had the highest proportional response rate (77% of those that 
responded to the survey) compared to Health and Social Care. There were 22 questions 
that related to Education and SEND. In all 22 of these, most responses were positive. This 
trend was present across all length of service groups and any differences fall within the 
margin of error. 
 
61% of respondents felt that their education needs were met quite well or very well and a 
further 20% felt their needs were being met. This compares to 19% who felt that their 
education needs were not being met. 
 
On the monitoring and assessment satisfaction questions for education 71% of 
respondents gave positive responses compared to 29% negative. Satisfaction was highest 
for Early Years Providers, Nursery/School/College and the EHCP Review. 
 
Communication with education establishments received 81% positive responses and 19% 
negative responses. This compares to 69% positive and 31% negative for communication 
with the SEND Team. Responses to feeling listened to in a calm and respectful manner 
stood out as particularly positive, with education establishments receiving over 91% 
positive feedback and the SEND Team 85%. 
 
On questions regarding working together, 65% felt that this was done quite well or very 
well and 13% felt that services were working together ‘OK’. 22% of respondents did not 
think that services were working together well. School staff, SENCOs and Early Years 
Providers each received a higher proportion positive response (around 70%) than the 
Local Authority SEND Team (50%). 
 
In total, the positive responses received for education related questions was 73% with 3% 
responding “Just OK”. This compares to 24% providing negative responses. 
 
 

3. HEALTH 
 
Health related questions had the second highest response rate of just over 50% of those 
that responded to the survey. 
 
Just under half of respondents felt that their needs were being met well or very well by 
health professionals, 22% felt that their needs were being met “Just OK” and 29% did not 
feel that their needs were being met. 
 
The Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) stood out as receiving the 
highest proportion of negative responses with half of respondents to this question stating 
that their needs were not being met. Physios and Occupational Therapists received the 
highest proportion of positive responses of around two thirds of respondents feeling that 
their needs were met well or very well. 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

10 
 

61% of respondents were satisfied with Monitoring & Assessment with 39% dissatisfied. 
Satisfaction was highest (over 70%) for Physios, Occupational Therapists and School 
Nursing. Over half of respondents were dissatisfied with CAMHS and Paediatricians. 
 
On communication related questions 63% of respondents were satisfied compared to 37% 
dissatisfied. Over 84% of respondents felt that they were listened to in a calm and 
respectful manner. The highest rates of dissatisfaction were with regards to the ease of 
communication and timeliness with over half of respondents giving negative responses.  
 
With regards to questions on working together just over half of responses were positive. 
Again, CAMHS stands out as the service receiving the most negative responses with half 
being negative. 
 
 

4. SOCIAL CARE 
 
Social Care received the lowest response rate of under 20% of those that responded to 
the survey, this means that over 80% of respondents either did not answer or stated that 
these questions were not applicable to them and their circumstances. Therefore, the 
sample size is much smaller than for Education and Health giving a greater margin of 
error. 
 
Questions related to communication received 60% positive responses compared to 40% 
negative. Over 75% of respondents felt that staff listened to them in a calm and respectful 
manner and that the language used is positive and constructive. Issues remain with the 
ease of contact, the timeliness and information and advice with over half of respondents 
rating these negatively. 
 

Springbrook and Aiming High received the highest proportion of positive responses across 
all the survey categories. Adult Social Care, Social Workers and the Disabilities Team 
scored poorly across each of the question categories with around two thirds, or more, of 
respondents responding negatively. 
 
 

5. SEND INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE 
 
58% of respondents had heard of the Sefton SEND Local Offer and 62% of the SEND 
information and advice service (SENDIASS). However, less than 20% of respondents had 
used either service in the 6 months prior to completing the survey. 
 
For the SEND Local Offer 58% of respondents that had used the service felt that their 
information and support needs had been met well or very well. 71% of respondents felt the 
same for the SENDIASS service. 
 
As previously mentioned, the breakdown of responses according to the length of 
engagement with SEND services reduces the reliability of any apparent trends. Bearing 
that in mind, the responses to awareness of the SEND Local Offer and SENDIASS 
indicate that there may be a correlation between the length of engagement and the 
awareness of these services.  
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

11 
 

Of those that had engaged for more than 3 years, 67% had heard of the SEND Local 
Offer. This reduced to 54% amongst those that had engaged for between 1 and 3 years 
and reduced further to 32% for those with less than 12 months engagement. 
 
The same trend can be seen for responses to awareness of SENDIASS with 76% of those 
engaged for 3 years or more being aware, 45% of those engaged for 1 to 3 years and 36% 
of those engaged for 12 months or less. 
 
The responses received regarding the transition provision showed that under half of the 
respondents were satisfied with the service, with more than half being dissatisfied with the 
level of support provided. 
 
 

6. SEND SYSTEM (end to end process of assessment to monitoring) 
 
30% of respondents said that they hadn’t seen an improvement in the local area SEND 
provision, 22% stated that they had seen an improvement and 45% were not sure. This 
breakdown did not differ greatly between those that reported to have been in the service 
for between 1-3 years and more than 3 years, a much greater proportion of those that had 
been in the service for less than 12 months stated that they were not sure if the SEND 
system was improving. 
 
39% of respondents agreed that the local area services (Education, Health and Social 
Care) were working well together to help their children or young people reach their full 
potential and 23% felt that these services were working together “Just OK”. 38% felt that 
these services were not working well together. 
 
 

Summary of Qualitative Analysis 
 
From the 273 responses to the survey, there were several comments provided by parents 
and carers in relation to the different sections of the survey.  Not all parents and carers 
provided a qualitative response. The responses provided have been analysed and a 
summary of the findings are below. The quotes included represent the general feeling of 
the feedback. 
 
 
EDUCATION 

In the main parents and carers shared positive experiences about their education setting 
and share that they and their child feel generally supported by their child’s primary and 
secondary school; reporting that their child is happy at school, staff help with the EHCP 
process, are accessible, supportive and communicate with parents and carers.   

 

“I cannot praise my child's SEN school highly enough.  I always feel that school make sure 
there is plenty of opportunity for me to be involved with them, and any issues or problems 
are always dealt with in a timely appropriate manner.  I feel that staff are very accessible 

and are always willing to listen and help with any issues”. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

12 
 

“We feel our son is, and in turn ourselves, extremely supported by the staff at our son's 
school.  We are aware they work closely with Sefton inclusion team and follow their 

recommendations to best support our son”. 

“We are very happy with our child’s school and the support they receive”. 

 

There are however, some parents and carers who believe that their child is not supported 
enough by the school and feel that the teaching staff may benefit from SENCO training 
and awareness of conditions. Some parents and carers feel as though they are not 
listened to about their child and in some cases, not listened to, until a diagnosis is made. 

 

“…. SENCO support is poor.  Teaching staff are lacking in SENCO needs and training in 
order to support student with SEN.  The lack of 1 to 1 classroom support for children with 
SEN is poor and limited if given at all”. 

“I feel it is difficult to get Educational Settings to listen to you as a parent if your child 
doesn't have a diagnosis even if they are in the system for assessments…” 

“I feel let down and not listened too. A lot of the time I’m given a lip service and not 
everything is followed through”. 

 

Some parents and carers feel that SENCOs are overworked and have large caseloads 
and that the support from the SENCOs has helped the parent and carer and their child, 
however, there are several reports from parents and carers that there hasn’t been any 
contact from the SENCOs, and information is not acted upon to provide additional help 
and support for their child. Some parents and carers believe that more training is needed 
for the SENCOs and other school staff. 

 

“SENCO team in Maricourt Catholic high are outstanding”. 

“Thank goodness my son has an amazing SENCO at school. Without her he would be lost 
in a poor system”. 

“My son doesn't receive any additional help in the education setting nor have I had any 
correspondence with his school SENCO”. 

“SENCO in school does not respond very well, she still hasn't done what she said she 
would last summer”. 

 

There are some examples where parents and carers report having had support from the 
school and the SEND team for the EHCP process/review and have had a positive 
experience, which was helped by being able to meet over ZOOM and a supportive 
approach.  

 

“All staff involved in the EHCP process were exceptional.... Wendy Colton....Jenny 
Mcneiliss were absolutely instrumental in the process and their kind supportive approach 
was pivotal! Send staff have been amazing in my experience. My son attends Presfield 

school and the staff are exceptional”. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

13 
 

“I don't have any contact with the "SEN Team' any more apart from the Caseworker once a 
year for EHCP review. The case worker Sara Chattun has done a good job since she's 

been involved”. 
 

“It has been difficult to answer as it has been a difficult year for everyone, and my child 
only started in his new school in September so transitions and settling in have been 

difficult for us. In saying this the school have been as helpful as possible carrying out 
EHCP review over zoom and keeping me informed”. 

 
 
There is however, feedback from some parents and carers that they haven’t had as good 
an experience – that the process went on longer than expected, that they are not happy 
with their child’s EHCP and that they had to ‘fight’ to get their right school setting for their 
child or support.  Following the EHCP, there are some parents and carers who also report 
that information, communication and contact with the SEND team is poor and that they are 
not aware of who is in the staff team and reviews have been delayed and are sometimes 
not attended by everyone who should be there. 

 

“The fight to get my child into the right school should not have had to be. Since being out 
of school for almost 2 years he walked into the new school and been there 100%” 

“When my daughters EHCP was being completed, it took over 12 months and anytime I 
tried to contact them, the same receptionist did everything she could but to try and speak 
to an actual member of staff who was conducting the plan was impossible. I never spoke 

to any of them”. 

“I don't even have contact details for LA SEND team, and I wouldn't know who to talk to if I 
needed help”. 

“SEND did not attend previous EHCP meeting. Next one is due in April”. 

 

Parents and carers acknowledge that the past twelve months has been unprecedented 
and have shared mixed views about the impact of COVID and the lockdown in relation to 
education (school and college), with parents and carers having different experiences.  The 
key themes central on: 

• For many there hasn’t been a lot of impact as their child has been either in school 

or receiving some support from school, if they have been at home; 

• The support, if at home, comes from the school or SEND team in the form of 

communication and contact, but mostly in the form of telephone contact, rather than 

face-to-face; 

• Some parents and carers report that they haven’t had any contact or enough extra 

support during COVID from the school/SENCO, college or the SEND team and are 

anxious that the lockdown has/is having an impact on their child – loss of education, 

change in routine, loss of confidence, lack of engagement and reluctance to go 

back to school; and 

• There are reports that there have been delays to the EHCP assessments, 

appointments with Educational Psychologists and Speech and Language Therapy. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

14 
 

HEALTH 

In relation to health, contact with health clinicians and professionals has been limited 
during the past year. Parents and carers report that they have experienced long waiting 
times for medical appointments, assessments, referrals (GP, CAMHS, Physio, SALT and 
Paediatrician) and medications (repeat scripts). There is some acknowledgement that this 
has been because of COVID and the lockdown, but there is some feedback from parents 
and carers that there were long delays prior to COVID, and the lockdown has only 
increased this.   

 

“Waiting time for referrals are too long and COVID has only made this worse”. 

“It's been hard this year. We don't really hear anything from Paediatrician now (not sure if 
it's COVID related or the fact my son has now been diagnosed). We're on a waiting list of 
ASD nurses (made longer by the fact they said they didn't receive our initial referral and I 

was waiting to hear from them for 2/3 months, had trouble finding details to chase them up 
and now have to wait longer). SALT were just starting to do lots of great work with my son 

before COVID then didn't hear much from them at the start of lockdown, now my sons 
EHCP is being written and SALT are starting to do face to face again it's improved. 

 “Community Paediatrician is good when seen but waiting 2+ years for appt is not ok”. 

“My child hasn’t been able to access any appointments at Alder Hey. I got a letter off them 
last year saying due to delays because of COVID I could not get his diagnosis and never 

heard of them since”. 

 

For some parents and carers, they have had phone and virtual consultations instead of 
face-to-face appointments; with some reporting that the use of virtual appointments has 
helped because they have been shielding.  

 

“COVID has affected face to face appointments but in some ways, things have improved 
for parents who are housebound because they can now have Zoom meetings instead”. 

 

Some parents and carers have started to see (face-to-face) appointments taking place 
again and where the child has been receiving therapy, some praise the work of the 
therapists their child has seen, but some report that waiting times have been too long. 

 

“OT/physio are amazing and historically SALT have been fantastic too”. 

“Sefton physio and OT teams have been incredible over the years and we are so grate for 
all their hard work”. 

“My son to referred to speech therapy by the school, the lady was excellent with my son. 
She didn't have any concerns about my son’s speech and at one point said she'd contact 
the school to see if there were any concerns for them that she would look into. She was 

great with our personal circumstances too, very understanding about me and my son’s dad 
being separated but both very active in his life. She always made sure that dad was 

included in everything. It was something I've never experienced before, it was lovely. I 
really wish the school was like that”. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

15 
 

“We have lived in Sefton for nearly 3 years. Still waiting for speech therapy appointment. 
Took 2 years of chasing to even be added to a waiting list!”. 

“Salt wait is too long and randomly throw you off list”. 

 

Parents and carers explained that in some cases they have found it difficult to contact 
Alder Hey and clinicians and have experience of poor customer service, had appointments 
cancelled and have been discharged early, only to be re-referred again. Parents and 
carers are reporting that waiting times for CAMHS is too long. 

 

“We struggle with hearing appointments at Alder Hey they have been cancelled on a few 
occasions and it’s been over a year since our last appointment”. 

“NO support prior to diagnosis. No support following this. ADHD/ASD team made one 
follow up phone call upon diagnosis and were signposted to Advanced Solutions and 

encouraged to claim DLA-No other ongoing support offered. We were then told our child 
would be discharged from service and would need to be re-referred should we need 

support in the future. We know waiting times for this is a minimum of 18 weeks”. 

“I don’t think there are enough practitioners in CAMHs and it’s difficult to get in touch with a 
specific practitioner as they are always busy”. 

“CAMHS and Paediatric services do not seem very joined up and I find myself having to 
explain what services are being provided to each of these teams”. 

 

Whilst there were some reports that the paediatrician has listened and supported the 
family, there is much feedback from parents and carers that they have experienced long 
delays for both assessments and appointments, found communication poor and difficult to 
contact them and not received information, not seen the same clinician and feel that they 
are not joined up with other professionals. 

 

“The paediatrician listens to me and is very good when we see her. However, the process 
has taken so long, we were referred in 2018 and still haven’t had all the necessary 

assessments”. 

“Paediatrician wrote child to be followed up 6monthly then left her position. Kept being 
given appointments to remove us from waiting list then cancelled up to days before, un 

named admin team reviewed case file and discharged my child without actually seeing her 
or reviewing her”. 

“Support from paediatricians has been non-existent since my child has been under them.  
It took roughly around 3-4 years from being referred to a paediatrician to being informed 

that my child did not have ADHD and at this time we are still none the wiser as to what his 
'problem" is. The few times my child was seen by a paediatrician it was never the same 

one. Trying to speak directly with their secretary is not possible and when you do leave a 
message, they never respond to you. 

Parents and carers also report that communication and support could be improved prior to 
and following diagnosis, with some parents feeling as though they are just ‘left’ after 
diagnosis, with no information or support. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

16 
 

“After my daughter had been given her diagnosis we felt very alone and where passed 
over to the asd nurses who have been less than helpful. I have waited over a year for 

some kind of support from them and every time I contact them, I get fobbed off”. 

“Child was diagnosed in April / May 2020, we had a follow up letter and few months later, 
then a call to say we were discharged. We have had virtually no support or guidance after 

our child's autism diagnosis. Don't know if this is normal, but it shouldn't be!”. 

 

There are reports that the Neurodevelopment pathway has improved, but there are several 
parents and carers who report that there is no pathway and limited knowledge about 
Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) and suggest training and information to support 
clinicians 

 

“The Neurodevelopmental Pathway is improving - which is about time”. 

“There is no pathway to FASD diagnosis in Sefton, so we are having to pay privately which 
is totally unacceptable”. 

“Doctors e.g. GP`s do not have enough knowledge about specific send issues eg FASD so 
you find yourself having to educate them and professionals as to the disorder”. 

 

Some parents and carers report that there were delays to the EHCP process, there has 
been no reviews and professionals are not working together.  

 

In relation to understanding the role of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO), twenty-
seven comments were received; some responses indicating that they didn’t know about 
the role and the purpose of the role.  Of those that responded some knew about the role 
because of their involvement with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum and had been in 
contact with the first Designated Clinical Officer but have not been in contact with the 
Interim DCO.  The responses as to the role and purpose included oversight and scrutiny 
and overseeing all aspects of health provision and helping to ensure that families and 
young people get the help they require, make improvements to services to improve 
children’s outcomes and to make sure health services are working together and effectively 
and hold them to account if not.  

 

SOCIAL CARE 
 

Many parents and carers didn’t respond to the questions about social care, indicating that 

some or all the section was not applicable to them.  Overwhelmingly, whether from parents 

and carers receiving support from social care or those who indicated this wasn’t 

applicable, the comments received centred on not being aware of the support or services 

that could be available to them as a family. 

“We have had no contact from social care at all and don't know what is available to us as a 

family”. 

“No idea who or where these services are, we've never heard of them”. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

17 
 

“We have never been told of the above services or how to access support”. 

 

There was some positive feedback in connection to the Early Help team in that the staff 

were knowledgeable and approachable and supported the EHCP process. 

 

“We have an early help worker Helen Ruddy is absolutely outstanding! She offers an 

exceptional level of support! She is caring and knowledgeable and has supported us 

through the whole EHCP process!” 

“…Our early help worker is very friendly, sensitive and compassionate to our needs but 

seems limited in what she can offer and often is met with stubborn attitudes from other 

professionals…”. 

 

There were some examples where parents and carers had experienced positive 

contact/support from their social worker, but more feedback was given about having no or 

limited support or communication from social worker/social care, changes to social work 

staff and some reporting that they are not involved in their reviews or listened to and that 

there is a lack of information (including information for post 18 years) and clarity about 

direct payments. 

 

“The (independent) social worker has been pleasant to deal with but has not really got us 

any progress. She is now leaving, and as of today I have no idea what happens next.” 

“Our social worker is involved with the family due to a separate matter but her help with 

XXXX learning difficulties has been invaluable. The social services meetings mean it is 

easier to contact other professionals and the social worker also helps me to get in touch 

with health professionals when they are difficult to get hold of”. 

“Since the start of his EHCP we have had no contact from the Social Work Team. Not 

even sure of what their role is?” 

“No contact from social care since last July despite my email to say we were struggling. 

Daughter is due to leave college in June. No social work input for last 2 reviews”. 

“The social care team do not include families in any decision making. Do not listen to 

families”. 

 

More parents and carers were able to feedback on Aiming High and Respite, 

acknowledging that due to COVID/lockdown Aiming High hasn’t been able to run normal 

services – with some children/young people being able to have some contact via ZOOM 

and others reporting no contact.  Nonetheless, in the main, the comments were very 

positive about Aiming High and Springbrook, with parents and carers valuing these 

services.  They welcome the opportunity for their child/young person to take part in social 

and physical activity, which they say helps with their behaviour and enables them to mix 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

18 
 

with other children in a safe environment.  In turn, this provides the parent and carer with 

some respite and time with their other children. 

 

“My child has been under Aiming High but unfortunately due to COVID has not had the 

opportunity to utilise the services”. 

“Brilliant although we have had minimal contact over the last year which has been hard. 

More sessions would be better too. One 4-hour session for one week isn't enough so more 

funding would make a difference”. 

“My son goes to a weekly youth club run by Aiming High, but this is currently on Zoom. It 

was suggested by the staff when I applied to Aiming High initially. My son loves it as he 

loves to socialise but struggles with his peers due to his learning disability. It’s a safe 

environment and is inclusive”. 

“Helps my child socialise. Gives much needed respite” 

“It's has made a massive difference in her mood and physically too”. 

“She has Aiming High provision which we access in school holidays, it is an immense relief 

for our family, great for her independence and socialisation. She also goes to respite one 

weekend a month, this is a massive support for our family, it gives us a breather from her 

intense behaviours and allows us quality one to one time with her brother who also has 

send”. 

“Access respite at Springbrook. This has made a massive difference to give myself a 

break, get sleep and take time to look after myself and get things done which wouldn’t be 

possible e.g. housework like painting that takes longer time. It’s also given my other child a 

space to feel relaxed and calm at home, have some quality time”. 

 

There were some parents and carers, however, that reported that Aiming High is difficult to 

access with calls/referrals not being followed up or not suitable for their child because of 

their needs. 

“Have been waiting over six months for Aiming High to get back to us”. 

“My son has been referred to Aiming High 3 times, each time we try to chase it up we are 

told we can't find anything to do with him. I gave up trying”. 

“My child’s issues make it impossible”. 

 

Some parents and carers did also report that their son/daughter did attend (prior to 
COVID/lockdown) other youth and play activities in the local community, ranging from 
after-school clubs, uniform groups, Buddy Up, other sporting clubs and attend the local 
libraries and value these activities but there are a several parents and carers who report 
that it is difficult to find extra-curricular activities that cater for children with more complex 
needs or who require 1:1 support. 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

19 
 

Parents and carers acknowledge that COVID/lockdown may have had an impact on social 

care services but in some cases report that the contact was limited before lockdown and 

therefore the same as before.  They have shared the following general themes in 

connection to the impact of COVID and the lockdown in relation to social care:  

• Not being able to access Aiming High/outreach when most needed 

• Having an impact on their child/young person – lack of support, affecting mental 

health, missing contact with friends and isolation 

• Whilst there has been some reported support from the school, the social worker and 

CAMHS, COVID/lockdown is having an impact on parents and carers – lack of 

support and advice and feeling alone. 

• There has been a delay to assessments and longer waiting times for appointments 

 

INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE 
 

Not all parents and carers responded to the question about Preparation for 
Adulthood/Transition as it may not have been applicable to them due to the age of their 
child. Of those that responded, a few parents and carers reported positive experiences of 
the transition process, particularly support from the child’s school or college (with Career 
Connect).  However, the main response in connection to preparing for adulthood was 
about having access to information and being aware of what is available to support their 
young person.  There is some feedback from parents and carers of children aged 14+ who 
didn’t know what was available and that there hasn’t been any contact or prompts, leaving 
some parents and carers anxious and worried for their child and the effect on their future. 

 

“Presfield are amazing and supportive to my son and will help him navigate the journey 
through to adulthood”. 

“I am unaware of any help and support for this”. 

“My child hadn't had any transitional prompts”. 

“There’s no information about what happens when my son turns 18 in a few months’ time 
apart from the fact that I’ve been told he will no longer be allowed to access Aiming High. 
No information about what happens with regard to the numerous healthcare consultants 
he currently is under at Alder Hey. I’m greatly concerned about his health care once he’s 
18 and I’m worried he’ll just drop to the bottom of adult waiting lists, with his considerable 
physical and mental health issues being just left. There no information about what he can 

do when he leaves college (I think it will be unlikely that he will ever be able to do a 
“normal” job without significant support) and no information about finances/benefits”. 

 

Where the reviews have taken place there are some reports that these have not always 
been attended by the SEN caseworker or a Transitions worker. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

20 
 

There are some reports that COVID/lockdown has impacted on preparing for adulthood as 
young people haven’t been able to access work experience or apprenticeships and 
disruption to formal education which may be hard for young person to catch up on. 

“My child is 16, I am struggling to get the right support because provisions that offer what 
they need e.g. practical work experience/apprenticeships aren't available because of 

COVID”. 

“COVID has thrown this transition up in the air, as a year 12 student who has had little 
formal education in this past year, will this time be caught up? What happens over his 
EHCP? Can he repeat a year? Too many questions and no one seems to know the 

answers”. 

 

SENDIASS is a service that is very much valued by many parents and carers, with reports 
that the service (and staff members) are helpful, supportive, knowledgeable and 
approachable, which has helped to get child’s needs met, helping with the EHCP, reviews 
and transition and facilitating contact with people who can support the family. 

 

“Sendiass are incredibly helpful and supportive, a very essential service to ensure child's 
needs are met”. 

“Wendy Colton Sendiass is simply outstanding! She is extremely knowledgeable and 
approachable and helped me through the whole EHCP process”. 

“Julia was amazing.  I couldn't have got through the EHCP process without her. Her help, 
knowledge and support was invaluable.   I will be forever grateful for her help. I just hope 

she's still around when we have our first review. She is a credit to her employer”. 

“Getting information and advice and practical help from Sendiass has been so beneficial. 
They are a wealth of information and always ready to support”. 

 

There is however, recognition that the team are very busy (both before and during 
COVID/lockdown) and perhaps because of this, some parents and carers report they do 
not always call back and can lead to delays. 

 

“Sendiass are most helpful when contactable but often you cannot get through to them 
which leaves us without support”. 

“I contacted SENDIASS numerous times over the last few years by email and phone and 
they never got in touch with me”. 

“Not enough staff constant delays”. 

 

There are some parents and carers who indicated that they were not aware of SENDIASS 
and the Local Offer and how to contact/access these services. 

“Don’t know who they are”. 

“Wasn't aware of either bodies”. 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

21 
 

There was acknowledgment that the Local Offer is better than it was, but in the main, 
parents and carers find the navigation of the Local Offer hard; that it is difficult to find the 
information needed and that some of the information is outdated and not suitable for their 
child.  

 

“The Local Offer is better than it was, but I still find it cumbersome and rarely can find the 
information that I need”. 

“Local offer is very difficult to navigate, and you tend to give up looking for the information 
you are searching for and few people know about it”. 

 

Some parents and carers report that COVID didn’t have an impact on them as they haven’t 

accessed the service or accessed the service during the past 12 months.  Where they 

have accessed the service, there are reports of a reduced service and communication was 

via email, rather than face. 

 

SEND SYSTEM IMPROVING 
 
When asked whether parents and carers thought the SEND system was improving, 
parents and carers had the opportunity to provide any last comments at the end of the 
survey.  There was a mixed response, whereby some parents and carers commented on 
seeing some improvements and having positive experiences to others reporting that they 
have concerns about communication, support and the SEND system. 

 

“Seen some positives but still a lot of improvement needs to be made in my view”. 

“The Sen team have made my son be able to read and write and his speech is improving 
each week. Best place for him is the special unit class”. 

“I have had a positive experience”. 

“I would say some parts are improving slowly. The ASD Pathway and recognition of PDA 
is a huge improvement. EHCPS are slowly improving in terms of quality, but there is a long 

way to go with reviews and those stuck in the backlog and left with no school place for 
years”. 

“There are definite improvements but in order for this to continue there are specific things 
that need to change. Token triage assessments need properly looking at with social care. 
Along with training for those teams they do not fall under CWD team but input into EHCP. 

Health need to deal with the backlog/ delay in health advice returns. A larger team maybe? 
There also needs to be consideration of how health that does not fall under Alder Hey is 

collected. (Ormskirk/ Southport for example, but also specialists at Manchester, gosh etc). 
Improvements in education will only be maintained if the team grows at the same rate that 
EHCP numbers do. It stands to reason that quality of plan/ reviews and family experience 

will decline if the staffing level does not keep up. 

“Seems as though nobody talks to each other. There seems to be too many children and 
your own child is just a number. The whole system is confusing. My child has been 

diagnosed for 6 years now and I’m sure we have not received help from all those that 
could help us. I don’t know who to turn to it who can help us. Anyone we do have contact 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

22 
 

with seem to be snowed under with lots of cases. There are not enough staff to offer 
enough support. More money is needed”. 

 

There were some parents and carers who declared that they are new to SEND support 
and therefore couldn’t comment if things were improving or not and others that had heard 
from their peers that things could be improved, however, they have found different from 
their own experience. 

 

“As this is the first time (that) we have had any involvement with Sefton's SEND I am 
unable to comment if the system is improving”. 

“We had been advised that the Sefton SEND system was broken, however, our 
experience has been great”. 

“I have no comparison but from word of mouth meeting other parents I feel like my 
experience within the last 9 months has been relatively easy compared to what others 

have been through. So, I would suggest that a massive improvement must of (sic) been 
made for me to have no issues with the services I have been provided with” 

 

Where parents and carers gave positive feedback, this centred on the involvement from 
SENDIASS, the school and from the SEND Service Manager and his team. 

In connection to communication, parents and carers reported that it should be consistent, 
shared information between professionals and staff should listen more. 

Some parents and carers report that they are ‘struggling’, are ‘overwhelmed’ and 
‘exhausted’ and suggest for the SEND system to improve there should be more: 

• training and experienced staff 

• staff to be able to provide both practical and physical support 

• funding and resource needed for EHCP assessments and support 

• awareness and information of what is available for children with different needs 

• awareness and information about the EHCP process, personal budgets and direct 

payments at the start of the pathway to diagnosis  

• appreciation that children have different needs, including children with more 

complex needs 

• More joined-up and less silo working 

 

“There doesn't seem to be provision for parents undergoing or just starting pathway to 
diagnosis. This is a point where people need information and support”. 

“I’m not sure what help us out there for us as a family that care for a child with additional 
needs, we have found information is limited and don’t know how to access it. There is 

probably a lot if help out there, but we don’t know how to access it”. 

“…. So many years I’ve gone to workshops and classes but it’s a one size fits all 
approach. A lot of it focuses on mainstream children with SEN and not complex needs 

children”. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

23 
 

“There is no joined up approach for our children.  As a solo mum with no support I often 
feel someone has switched the light off and we are left alone to navigate in the dark.  Lack 

of practical and physical support available”. 

 

Complaints Analysis 
 
To validate the analysis from the consultation, given the relatively low proportion of 
respondents, we have considered the complaints raised to the Local Authority about 
SEND services over the 2020 calendar year. 
 
Generally, the themes emerging from complaints are consistent with those issues 
identified through the consultation exercise in both the quantitative and qualitative 
analysis, namely: 
 

• Issues with contact and communication during the EHCP process 

• Delays with assessments and reviews 

• Complaints regarding the provision of some services, also including support for LA 
schools 

 

Theme of 

Complaint

Number of 

Complaints
Outcome

1 Upheld

1 Not Upheld

4 Partially Upheld

Request for 

other school
1 1 Not Upheld

Total 12

Request for 

funding
2 2 Not Upheld

Data breach 1 1 Upheld

Communication 

problem
2 2 Upheld

January - December 2020

EHCP delay 6

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

24 
 

Annexe.1 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Education Questions 

 

 

23

37

28

3

35

36

15

11

25

56

38

41

45

27

16

26

45

41

20

22

29

2

28

32

26

3

20

22

12

11

11

24

28

42

34

21

13

15

33

31

23

24

32

6

79

94

59

9

73

84

96

95

91

72

81

91

85

105

106

99

80

77

60

45

51

8

84

92

53

14

133

115

123

142

130

98

106

33

34

48

57

53

43

48

123

123

51

14

250 200 150 100 50 50 100 150 200 250

Education - Needs Met

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction -
Nursery/School/College

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction - EHCP Review

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction - Early Years
Provider

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Ease

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Timeliness

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Named Contact

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Listened To

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Positive &
Constructive

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Information &
Advice

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication - Involvement in Plan
Development

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Ease

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Timeliness

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Named Contact

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Listened To

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Positive & Constructive

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Information & Advice

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Involvement in Plan
development

Education - Working Together - School

Education - Working Together - SENCO

Education - Working Together - LA SEND

Education - Working Together - Early Years

Very Dissatisfied Fairly Dissatisfied Neutral Fairly Satisfied Very Satisfied

Page 42

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

25 
 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK

Not very 

well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by EDUCATION? (for example, Nursery, School, College or Early 

Years Provider, e.g. Childminder/playgroup etc) - Needs and education Education - Needs Met 84 79 52 23 28 7 61.3 19.2

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Nursery/School/College

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

Nursery/School/College 92 94 0 37 32 8 72.9 27.1

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and 

satisfaction - EHCP's Review Process

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

EHCP Review 53 59 0 28 26 78 67.5 32.5

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Early Years Provider (Childminder, playgroup etc)

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

Early Years Provider 14 9 0 3 3 164 79.3 20.7

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - It is easy to contact with the person I need 

to

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - Ease 133 73 0 35 20 9 78.9 21.1

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - Queries or requests for information are 

responded to in a timely manner

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - 

Timeliness 115 84 0 36 22 12 77.4 22.6

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - Written communication includes a named 

contact

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - Named 

Contact 123 96 0 15 12 21 89.0 11.0

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - Staff listen to me in a calm and respectful 

manner

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - Listened 

To 142 95 0 11 11 9 91.5 8.5

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - Language is positive and constructive

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - Positive & 

Constructive 130 91 0 25 11 11 86.0 14.0

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - I receive the right level of information and 

advice about the assessment process

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - 

Information & Advice 98 72 0 56 24 19 68.0 32.0

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - 

Education and communication - I feel listened to in the development and 

review of my child's/young person's plans

Education - Edn 

Establishment - 

Communication - 

Involvement in Plan 

Development 106 81 0 38 28 15 73.9 26.1

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - It is easy to contact with the person I need to

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Ease 33 91 0 41 42 62 59.9 40.1

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - Queries or requests for information are responded to in a 

timely manner

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - 

Timeliness 34 85 0 45 34 72 60.1 39.9

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - Written communication includes a named contact

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Named 

Contact 48 105 0 27 21 69 76.1 23.9

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - Listening is calm and respectful

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Listened 

To 57 106 0 16 13 76 84.9 15.1

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - Language is positive and constructive

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Positive & 

Constructive 53 99 0 26 15 76 78.8 21.2

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - I receive the right level of information and advice about 

the assessment process

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - 

Information & Advice 43 80 0 45 33 69 61.2 38.8

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM 

to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and 

communication - I feel listened to in the development and review of my 

child's/young person's plans

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - 

Involvement in Plan 

development 48 77 0 41 31 71 63.5 36.5

How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - School staff

Education - Working 

Together - School 123 60 32 20 23 11 70.9 16.7

How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - SENCOs

Education - Working 

Together - SENCO 123 45 31 22 24 21 68.6 18.8

How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Local Authority SEND Team

Education - Working 

Together - LA SEND 51 51 38 29 32 65 50.7 30.3

How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Early Years Provider 

(Childminder, playgroup etc)

Education - Working 

Together - Early Years 14 8 2 2 6 197 68.8 25.0

Question Question Summary

Positive 

%

Negative 

%

Page 43

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

26 
 

 

 

 

 

27%

73%

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction -
Nursery/School/College

33%

67%

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction -
EHCP Review

21%

79%

Education - Monitoring & Assessment Satisfaction -
Early Years Provider

21%

79%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Ease

23%

77%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Timeliness

11%

89%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Named Contact

8%

92%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Listened To

14%

86%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Positive & Constructive

32%

68%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Information & Advice

26%

74%

Education - Edn Establishment - Communication -
Involvement in Plan Development

40%

60%

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Ease

40%

60%

Education - SEND Team - Communication -
Timeliness

24%

76%

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Named 
Contact

15%

85%

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Listened 
To

21%

79%

Education - SEND Team - Communication - Positive 
& Constructive

39%

61%

Education - SEND Team - Communication -
Information & Advice

37%

63%

Education - SEND Team - Communication -
Involvement in Plan development

17%

71%

Education - Working Together - School

19%

69%

Education - Working Together - SENCO

30%

51%

Education - Working Together - LA SEND

25%

69%

Education - Working Together - Early Years

19%

61%

Education - Needs Met

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

27 
 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Health Questions 

 

 

 

  

23

19

4

10

25

16

28

21

28

8

13

49

16

34

71

79

36

20

35

54

49

19

16

5

9

30

12

25

33

12

5

15

37

15

23

35

14

4

18

45

18

28

59

50

27

14

15

35

28

31

12

5

12

35

16

22

15

27

17

33

32

31

45

19

25

14

32

52

39

72

77

73

116

124

113

89

92

11

29

11

28

37

34

47

21

45

19

39

33

45

46

21

41

24

44

38

50

46

27

21

39

57

46

35

45

23

42

20

40

37

48

44

200 150 100 50 50 100 150 200

Health - Needs Met - CAMHS

Health - Needs Met - Speech & Language

Health - Needs Met - Physio

Health - Needs Met - Occupational Therapist

Health - Needs Met -Paediatrician

Health - Needs Met - School Nursing

Health - Needs Met - GP

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - CAMHS

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Speech & Language

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Physio

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Occupational Therapy

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Paediatrician

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - School Nursing

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - GP

Health - Communication - Ease

Health - Communication - Timeliness

Health - Communication - Named Contact

Health - Communication - Listened To

Health - Communication - Positive & Constructive

Health - Communication - Information & Advice

Health - Communication - Involvement in Plan development

Health - Working Together - CAMHS

Health - Working Together - Speech & Language

Health - Working Together - Physio

Health - Working Together - Occupational Therapist

Health - Working Together - Paediatrician

Health - Working Together - School Nursing

Health - Working Together - GP

Very Dissatisfied Fairly Dissatisfied Neutral Fairly Satisfied Very Satisfied

Page 45

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

28 
 

 
Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfie

d

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK

Not very 

well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - CAMHS

Health - Needs 

Met - CAMHS 21 15 21 23 33 155 31.9 49.6

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - Speech & Language Therapy

Health - Needs 

Met - Speech & 

Language 45 27 20 19 12 148 58.5 25.2
Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - Physio

Health - Needs 

Met - Physio 19 17 8 4 5 210 67.9 17.0
Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - Occupational Therapist

Health - Needs 

Met - 

Occupational 

Therapist 39 33 14 10 15 156 64.9 22.5
Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - Paediatrician

Health - Needs 

Met -

Paediatrician 33 32 57 25 37 84 35.3 33.7

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - School Nursing

Health - Needs 

Met - School 

Nursing 45 31 26 16 15 132 57.1 23.3
Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and 

Language Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and 

Paediatrician? - Health and needs - GP's

Health - Needs 

Met - GP 46 45 51 28 23 75 47.2 26.4

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - CAMHS

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

CAMHS 21 19 0 21 35 168 41.7 58.3

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Speech and Language Therapy

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

Speech & 

Language 41 25 0 28 14 159 61.1 38.9

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Physio

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

Physio 24 14 0 8 4 215 76.0 24.0

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Occupational Therapy

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

Occupational 

Therapy 44 32 0 13 18 159 71.0 29.0

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - Paediatrician

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

Paediatrician 38 52 0 49 45 80 48.9 51.1

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - School Nursing

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - 

School Nursing 50 39 0 16 18 140 72.4 27.6

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and 

satisfaction - GP's

Health - 

Monitoring & 

Assessment - GP 46 72 0 34 28 85 65.6 34.4

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - It is easy 

to contact the person I need to

Health - 

Communication - 

Ease 27 77 0 71 59 34 44.4 55.6

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Queries 

or requests for information are responded to in a timely manner

Health - 

Communication - 

Timeliness 21 73 0 79 50 43 42.2 57.8
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Written 

communication includes a named contact

Health - 

Communication - 

Named Contact 39 116 0 36 27 49 71.1 28.9
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Staff 

listen to me in a calm and respectful manner

Health - 

Communication - 

Listened To 57 124 0 20 14 52 84.2 15.8

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Language 

is positive and constructive

Health - 

Communication - 

Positive & 

Constructive 46 113 0 35 15 57 76.1 23.9

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - I receive 

the right level of information and advice about the assessment process

Health - 

Communication - 

Information & 

Advice 35 89 0 54 35 56 58.2 41.8

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection 

to communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - I feel 

listened to in the development and review of my child's/young person's 

plans

Health - 

Communication - 

Involvement in 

Plan 

development 45 92 0 49 28 54 64.0 36.0
How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - CAMHS

Health - Working 

Together - CAMHS 23 11 16 19 31 165 34.0 50.0

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Speech & Language

Health - Working 

Together - Speech 

& Language 42 29 17 16 12 151 61.2 24.1
How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Physio

Health - Working 

Together - Physio 20 11 10 5 5 214 60.8 19.6

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Occupational therapist

Health - Working 

Together - 

Occupational 

Therapist 40 28 18 9 12 158 63.6 19.6

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - Paediatrician

Health - Working 

Together - 

Paediatrician 37 37 42 30 35 86 40.9 35.9

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - School Nursing

Health - Working 

Together - School 

Nursing 48 34 16 12 16 138 65.1 22.2

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or 

young person? - Education and working together - GP's

Health - Working 

Together - GP 44 47 41 25 22 86 50.8 26.3

Positive 

%

Negative 

%

Question 

SummaryQuestion

Page 46

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

29 
 

 

 

50%

32%

Health - Needs Met - CAMHS

25%

59%

Health - Needs Met - Speech & Language

17%

68%

Health - Needs Met - Physio

23%

65%

Health - Needs Met - Occupational Therapist

34%

35%

Health - Needs Met -Paediatrician

23%

57%

Health - Needs Met - School Nursing

26%

47%

Health - Needs Met - GP

58%

42%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - CAMHS

39%

61%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Speech & 
Language

24%

76%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Physio

29%

71%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Occupational 
Therapy

51%

49%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - Paediatrician

28%

72%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - School Nursing

34%

66%

Health - Monitoring & Assessment - GP

56%

44%

Health - Communication - Ease

58%

42%

Health - Communication - Timeliness

29%

71%

Health - Communication - Named Contact

16%

84%

Health - Communication - Listened To

24%

76%

Health - Communication - Positive & Constructive

42%

58%

Health - Communication - Information & Advice

36%

64%

Health - Communication - Involvement in Plan 
development

50%

34%

Health - Working Together - CAMHS

24%

61%

Health - Working Together - Speech & Language

20%

61%

Health - Working Together - Physio

20%

64%

Health - Working Together - Occupational Therapist

36%

41%

Health - Working Together - Paediatrician

22%

65%

Health - Working Together - School Nursing

26%

51%

Health - Working Together - GP

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

30 
 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Social Care Questions 

 

 

 

8

6

7

1

6

12

8

6

1

8

31

30

16

10

13

28

24

7

4

5

7

18

10

13

4

4

24

21

13

15

3

6

18

16

14

6

7

8

19

13

20

8

11

3

5

20

10

10

16

2

1

11

16

11

26

2

3

11

29

27

40

43

39

24

33

11

9

16

3

1

11

10

11

19

6

1

6

8

10

17

5

0

4

14

14

20

22

23

14

17

9

10

15

5

0

3

100 80 60 40 20 20 40 60 80 100

Social Care - Needs Met - Social Worker

Social Care - Needs Met - Early Help

Social Care - Needs Met - Aiming High

Social Care - Needs Met - Springbrook

Social Care - Needs Met - Adult Social Care

Social Care - Needs Met - Disabilities Team

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Social Worker

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Early Help

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Aiming High

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Springbrook

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Adult Social Care

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Disabilities Team

Social Care - Communication - Ease

Social Care - Communication - Timeliness

Social Care - Communication - Named Contact

Social Care - Communication - Listened To

Social Care - Communication - Positive & Constructive

Social Care - Communication - Information & Advice

Social Care - Communication - Involvement in Plan development

Social Care - Working Together - Social Worker

Social Care - Working Together - Early Help

Social Care - Working Together - Aiming High

Social Care - Working Together - Springbrook

Social Care - Working Together - Adult Social Care

Social Care - Working Together - Disabilities Team

Very Dissatisfied Fairly Dissatisfied Neutral Fairly Satisfied Very Satisfied

Page 48

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

31 
 

 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK

Not very 

well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Social 

Worker

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Social Worker 10 10 10 8 18 207 35.7 46.4

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Early Help 

practitioner

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Early Help 11 10 7 6 10 219 47.7 36.4

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Aiming High

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Aiming High 19 16 17 7 13 193 48.6 27.8

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Springbrook

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Springbrook 6 2 0 1 4 249 61.5 38.5

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Adult Social 

Care (if over 18)

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Adult Social Care 1 1 0 0 4 252 33.3 66.7

Please tell us how well you think your child or young person's needs 

are being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Children 

with Disabilities Team

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Disabilities Team 6 11 4 6 24 208 33.3 58.8

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Social Worker

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Social Worker 8 16 0 12 21 203 42.1 57.9

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Early Help practitioner

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Early Help 10 11 0 8 13 214 50.0 50.0

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Aiming High

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Aiming High 17 26 0 6 15 196 67.2 32.8

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Springbrook

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Springbrook 5 2 0 1 3 248 63.6 36.4

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Adult Social Care (if over 18)

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Adult Social 

Care 0 3 0 0 6 244 33.3 66.7

Overall how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and 

assessment of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - 

Social Care and satisfaction - Children with Disabilities Team

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Disabilities 

Team 4 11 0 8 18 216 36.6 63.4

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - It is easy to contact with the person I need to

Social Care - Communication - 

Ease 14 29 0 31 16 169 47.8 52.2

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - Queries or requests for information are responded 

to in a timely manner

Social Care - Communication - 

Timeliness 14 27 0 30 14 172 48.2 51.8

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - Written communication includes a named contact

Social Care - Communication - 

Named Contact 20 40 0 16 6 175 73.2 26.8

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - Staff listen to me in a calm and respectful manner

Social Care - Communication - 

Listened To 22 43 0 10 7 175 79.3 20.7

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - Language is positive and constructive

Social Care - Communication - 

Positive & Constructive 23 39 0 13 8 175 74.7 25.3

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - I receive the right level of information and advice 

about the assessment process

Social Care - Communication - 

Information & Advice 14 24 0 28 19 173 44.7 55.3

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in 

connection to communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

communication - I feel listened to in the development and review of 

my child's/young person's plans

Social Care - Communication - 

Involvement in Plan 

development 17 33 0 24 13 170 57.5 42.5

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - 

Social Worker

Social Care - Working 

Together - Social Worker 9 11 9 7 20 198 35.7 48.2

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - Early 

Help practitioner

Social Care - Working 

Together - Early Help 10 9 7 4 8 213 50.0 31.6

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - 

Aiming High

Social Care - Working 

Together - Aiming High 15 16 10 5 11 199 54.4 28.1
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - 

Springbrook

Social Care - Working 

Together - Springbrook 5 3 1 0 3 240 66.7 25.0

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - Adult 

Social Care (if over 18)

Social Care - Working 

Together - Adult Social Care 0 1 1 0 5 245 14.3 71.4

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support 

your child or young person? - Social Care and working together - 

Children with Disabilities Team

Social Care - Working 

Together - Disabilities Team 3 11 2 7 20 208 32.6 62.8

Question Question Summary

Positive 

%

Negativ

e %

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

32 
 

 

 

 

46%

36%

Social Care - Needs Met - Social Worker

36%

48%

Social Care - Needs Met - Early Help

28%

49%

Social Care - Needs Met - Aiming High

38%

62%

Social Care - Needs Met - Springbrook

67%

33%

Social Care - Needs Met - Adult Social Care

59%

33%

Social Care - Needs Met - Disabilities Team

58%

42%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Social 
Worker

50%

50%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Early Help

33%

67%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Aiming High

36%

64%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Springbrook

67%

33%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Adult Social 
Care

63%

37%

Social Care - Monitoring & Assessment - Disabilities 
Team

52%

48%

Social Care - Communication - Ease

52%

48%

Social Care - Communication - Timeliness

27%

73%

Social Care - Communication - Named Contact

21%

79%

Social Care - Communication - Listened To

25%

75%

Social Care - Communication - Positive & 
Constructive

55%

45%

Social Care - Communication - Information & Advice

43%

57%

Social Care - Communication - Involvement in Plan 
development

48%

36%

Social Care - Working Together - Social Worker

32%

50%

Social Care - Working Together - Early Help

28%

54%

Social Care - Working Together - Aiming High

25%

67%

Social Care - Working Together - Springbrook

71%

14%

Social Care - Working Together - Adult Social Care

63%

33%

Social Care - Working Together - Disabilities Team

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

33 
 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Other Questions  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK

Not very 

well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

If your young person is aged 14 - 25 years old, please tell us how 

satisfied you are of your experience with TRANSITION / PREPARING 

FOR ADULTHOOD  - Satisfaction Transitions Other - Transitions 8 26 0 13 28 167 45.3 54.7

How satisfied are you with the following at meeting your 

information and support needs? - Satisfaction  Information and 

support - The Sefton SEND Local Offer Other - SEND Local Offer 11 42 0 21 17 165 58.2 41.8
How satisfied are you with the following at meeting your 

information and support needs? - Satisfaction  Information and 

support - Sefton SENDIASS Other - Sefton SENDIASS 42 22 0 13 13 171 71.1 28.9

How well do you find Education, Health and Social Care work 

together for your child or young person to help them reach their full 

potential? - Working together

Other - Education, Health, 

Social Care - Working 

Together 36 57 55 40 51 26 38.9 38.1

Question Question Summary

Positive 

%

Negative 

%

55%

45%

Other - Transitions

42%

58%

Other - SEND Local Offer

29%

71%

Other - Sefton SENDIASS

38%

39%

Other - Education, Health, Social Care - Working 
Together

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

34 
 

Other Graphs 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

35 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

36 
 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Questions by length of service engagement 

Less Than 12 months 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

37 
 

Between 1 and 3 years 

 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

38 
 

Over 3 years 

 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

39 
 

Have you heard of the Sefton SEND Local Offer? 

 

Have you heard of Sefton SENDIASS? 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

40 
 

 
 

Feedback SEND system and 
services 
March 2021 

 
 

What families told us about SEND system 

and services following two parent/carer 
surveys in 2019 and 2020. 

You Said: “The SEND support pathway isn't clear to us” 

• We don't feel aware of the parts of the process or what happens next 

• We don’t know about the services offered and ways to access support is unclear 

• Signposting from professionals about other services could be better 

• We are keen to build on our connections with other families through groups 

What we have done 

✓ Supported Sefton Parent Carer Forum (SPCF) to enable them to help families to build their own 
connections with regular drop-in sessions planned. 

✓ Strengthened the SEND Casework team with £400k additional investment into the service 

✓ Reviewed the role and job description and appointed a SEND Service Manager 

✓ Strengthened SENDIASS through additional funding from Council and CCG and additional staffing to 
support families to navigate complex services 

✓ Preparing for Adulthood (PfA) workshops delivered and feedback fed into the Preparing for 
Adulthood Guide which has been co-produced with parents, carers and young people. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 5



Distribution: Final and Approved. 
 

 

41 
 

✓ Young Person’s Schools Get Talking sessions have been developed to ensure the voice of young 
person is heard. 

✓ Local Offer website has been refreshed and all changes have been co-produced with parents, carers 
and young people

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



1 

 

 

 

✓ Mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a Resource Pack 

✓ Published a Guidance document for Children with Additional Needs and Disabilities 

✓ Reviewed the Aiming High Offer to identify gaps and put in place a refreshed offer 

✓ Coproduced and refreshed the EHCP paperwork and put in place introductory meetings with 
parents, carers and young people to explain clearly the process 

✓ Trained Early Help staff to understand the EHCP and SEN pathways so they can better support 
parents, carers and young people. 

What we are going to do 

• Continue to listen to families, and work with them to shape services 

• Support SPCF to access their own premises 

• Coproduce a young persons and parents/carers leaflet explaining the EHCP process 

You Said: “Diagnosis and timescales to support takes too long” 

• Support needs to be available/accessible prior to a diagnosis 

• We have long waits for appointments 

• We need support in place before a diagnosis is made 

What we have done 

✓ Understanding of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) role which has been shared more widely 
and a dedicated e-mail address means that families are now able to contact the DCO directly 

✓ Implemented a new appointment system at Alder Hey which is more user friendly and has led to 
fewer cancellations 

✓ Improvements to the prescribing system at Alder Hey to make it easier for families to re-order 
medications. 

✓ Alder Hey EHCP team are now contacting parents/carers to discuss updated advice to be included 
in EHCP Annual Reviews 

✓ Liverpool and Sefton pathway now is NICE compliant and have merged to become one Alder Hey 
pathway to ensure equity across our community for ASD & ADHD 

✓ ASD letters and reports to be used in the pathway are being co-produced with parent / carers. 

✓ 6th Review of ASD and ADHD referral process and form being undertaken with parents / carers and 
local schools to ensure co-production 

✓ Leaflet to be given to parents at start of pathway process to be reviewed and co-produced with 
parents / carers. ASD Post Diagnostic Feedback Booklet & Advisory Session Booklet have already 
been done and approved Jan 2021 

✓ ASD Post diagnostic pathway review with stakeholders to reduce duplication 

Page 60

Agenda Item 5



2 

 

 

 
 
 

✓ Liverpool & Sefton Parent & Carer Forums representatives are key members of the ASD & ADHD 
improvement programme. 

✓ Published a SEN Universal Services Resource Pack which was shared widely and is on the Sefton 
Directory and Local Offer. 

✓ Listened to parents and carers concerns about waiting times and put in place targets 

What we are going to do 

• ADHD & ASD Children and Young People pathway/service feedback sessions to be arranged for 
April/May 2021 

• Continue to have direct input from the parent / carer forum to help us continually improve the 
pathway 

• Consult on and publish and All Age Autism Strategy and Action Plan 

 
 

You Said: “We feel that mainstream schools are not always inclusive” 

• We don’t always feel supported by the school particularly where the child/young person has 
challenging behaviour 

• The SENCO is the only person in the school where issues can be managed often bypassing other 
teachers 

• We feel like we have to fight for our children to receive the right support in their school/setting 

What we have done 

✓ Started to develop an Education Strategy with Inclusion as one of its key priorities 

✓ Inclusion task group established reporting into the SEN School Forum 

✓ Strengthened our SENDIASS service through additional staffing and funding so they can better 
support parents and carers 

✓ Ensured SEND services attend the SENco Cluster Meetings to share good practice, offer peer 
support and raise concerns. 

✓ Reviewed our Special Schools Outreach Service to support our mainstream schools 

✓ Ensured that the Fair Access Panel looked at alternative options for families 

✓ Strengthened SEN Early Years support to mainstream nurseries to support the transition to primary 
school. 

✓ Reviewed our Resourced Provision to ensure we have sufficient places to meet the needs of our 
children. 

✓ Developed a Children’s Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) support service for schools 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



3 

 

 

 
 

✓ Co-produced a Preparing for Adulthood Guide 

✓ Reviewed and refreshed the Graduated Response guidance 

✓ Inclusion team met with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum and SENDIASS to share the advice 
being delivered to schools by the Inclusion Team on remote learning for SEND. This includes coffee 
mornings being offered for the parents/carers of children and young people with Autism Social and 
Communication to support them during lockdown. 

✓ Put in place an Early Help Link Worker for all schools to help them to initiate the Early Help 
assessment 

✓ The Core Ep team will have increased capacity over the next 18 months. This will ensure that 
statutory duties continue to be delivered but also allow for more varied work which promotes the 
inclusion of all children and young people in their chosen educational setting. 

What are we going to do 

• Service Manager for Inclusion to be appointed. 

• Graduated teaching response guidance documents to be in easy read version which will be co- 
produced with young people for young people. 

• Further development of Resource Provision in school 

• Support school staff with further skills and training 

• Improve the universal offer supporting emotional wellbeing through quality first teaching for all 
children. 

• Review the model of funding for schools. 

• We will do further work with schools and settings to ensure welcoming and inclusive practice as 
well as further developing our advice and guidance for SEN information 

 

You Said: “Coordination and communication between professionals 
could be improved” 

• Better communication between all services and agencies involved is needed 

• Some services are providing conflicting advice 

• Professionals don’t always get back to us and keep us updated 

• We are often passed between agencies 

What we have done 

✓ Shared this feedback with our teams and directed professionals to offer a person-centred approach 
when communicating with parents and carers 

✓ Put in place regular bi-monthly Keep in Touch meetings with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum 
and Operational leads 

Page 62

Agenda Item 5



4 

 

 

 
 
 

✓ Strengthened strategic communication with Council by the Head of Communities and with Health 
by the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) 

✓ Co-production sub group of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board established to ensure 
coordination across the system 

✓ Established a SEND Health Steering Group to ensure coordination of health advices 

✓ EHCP training programme delivered by NASEN to all health and council staff 

✓ A multi agency quality assurance process has been put in place involving all key services and audit 
outcomes fed back through service leads 

✓ Changes made to the EHCP assessment process that includes initial meeting with parents and 
carers and a joint outcomes meeting as well. 

✓ All new EHCP parents/carers are contacted to complete a service user feedback survey 

✓ Casework Officers now share mobile phone numbers when they first contact families which has 
improved communication 

✓ Annual parent /carer survey to capture ongoing issues 

 
 

What we are going to do 

• Ensure that we continue to update information on the Local Offer 

• Embed service user feedback as standard practice within all services 

You Said: “The short breaks offer is not easy to understand or access” 

• We are not aware of the short breaks offer and what we are entitled to 

• Improvements are needed to make mainstream activities inclusive 

• We feel that staff aren't suitably trained to understand and support the child's needs 

What we have done 

✓ We have established reviews of both the Aiming High short breaks offer and the Springbrook 
overnight respite offer 

✓ We have established a task group around Direct Payments 

✓ We have mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a 
Resource Pack 

✓ We have co-produced a refresh of the Local Offer so it is easier to find out the information on 
activities and short breaks 

✓ We have widened access to Public Health Budgets and co-produced leaflets and information 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



5 

 

 

 
 

What we are going to do 

• We are redesigning the short breaks offer in line with consultation feedback 

• We will consult on and implement an All Age Autism Strategy for the borough 

• We will introduce Autism training for all providers of universal mainstream services 

• We will work with the voluntary sector to ensure gaps in provision can be met 

Page 64

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Feedback  
SEND system and 
services 
March 2021 

 

What families told us about SEND system 
and services following two parent/carer 
surveys in 2019 and 2020. 

You Said: “The SEND support pathway isn't clear to us” 
• We don't feel aware of the parts of the process or what happens next 

• We don’t know about the services offered and ways to access support is unclear 

• Signposting from professionals about other services could be better 

• We are keen to build on our connections with other families through groups 

What we have done 

✓ Supported Sefton Parent Carer Forum (SPCF) to enable them to help families to build their own 
connections with regular drop-in sessions planned. 

✓ Strengthened the SEND Casework team with £400k additional investment into the service 

✓ Reviewed the role and job description and appointed a SEND Service Manager 

✓ Strengthened SENDIASS through additional funding from Council and CCG and additional staffing to 
support families to navigate complex services 

✓ Preparing for Adulthood (PfA) workshops delivered and feedback fed into the Preparing for 
Adulthood Guide which has been co-produced with parents, carers and young people. 

✓ Young Person’s Schools Get Talking sessions have been developed to ensure the voice of young 
person is heard. 

✓ Local Offer website has been refreshed and all changes have been co-produced with parents, carers 
and young people 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

1  

✓ Mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a Resource Pack 

✓ Published a Guidance document for Children with Additional Needs and Disabilities 

✓ Reviewed the Aiming High Offer to identify gaps and put in place a refreshed offer 

✓ Coproduced and refreshed the EHCP paperwork and put in place introductory meetings with 
parents, carers and young people to explain clearly the process 

✓ Trained Early Help staff to understand the EHCP and SEN pathways so they can better support 
parents, carers and young people. 

What we are going to do 

• Continue to listen to families, and work with them to shape services 

• Support SPCF to access their own premises 

• Coproduce a young persons and parents/carers leaflet explaining the EHCP process 

You Said: “Diagnosis and timescales to support takes too long” 
• Support needs to be available/accessible prior to a diagnosis 

• We have long waits for appointments 

• We need support in place before a diagnosis is made 

What we have done 

✓ Understanding of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) role which has been shared more widely 
and a dedicated e-mail address means that families are now able to contact the DCO directly 

✓ Implemented a new appointment system at Alder Hey which is more user friendly and has led to 
fewer cancellations 

✓ Improvements to the prescribing system at Alder Hey to make it easier for families to re-order 
medications. 

✓ Alder Hey EHCP team are now contacting parents/carers to discuss updated advice to be included 
in EHCP Annual Reviews  

✓ Liverpool and Sefton pathway now is NICE compliant and have merged to become one Alder Hey 
pathway to ensure equity across our community for ASD & ADHD 

✓ ASD letters and reports to be used in the pathway are being co-produced with parent / carers. 

✓ 6th Review of ASD and ADHD referral process and form being undertaken with parents / carers and 
local schools to ensure co-production 

✓ Leaflet to be given to parents at start of pathway process to be reviewed and co-produced with 
parents / carers. ASD Post Diagnostic Feedback Booklet & Advisory Session Booklet have already 
been done and approved Jan 2021 

✓ ASD Post diagnostic pathway review with stakeholders to reduce duplication  

Page 68

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

2  

✓ Liverpool & Sefton Parent & Carer Forums representatives are key members of the ASD & ADHD 
improvement programme. 

✓ Published a SEN Universal Services Resource Pack which was shared widely and is on the Sefton 
Directory and Local Offer. 

✓ Listened to parents and carers concerns about waiting times and put in place targets 

What we are going to do 

• ADHD & ASD Children and Young People pathway/service feedback sessions to be arranged for 
April/May 2021 

• Continue to have direct input from the parent / carer forum to help us continually improve the 
pathway 

• Consult on and publish and All Age Autism Strategy and Action Plan 

 

You Said: “We feel that mainstream schools are not always 
inclusive” 

• We don’t always feel supported by the school particularly where the child/young person has 
challenging behaviour 

• The SENCO is the only person in the school where issues can be managed often bypassing other 
teachers 

• We feel like we have to fight for our children to receive the right support in their school/setting 

What we have done 

✓ Started to develop an Education Strategy with Inclusion as one of its key priorities 

✓ Inclusion task group established reporting into the SEN School Forum 

✓ Strengthened our SENDIASS service through additional staffing and funding so they can better 
support parents and carers 

✓ Ensured SEND services attend the SENco Cluster Meetings to share good practice, offer peer 
support and raise concerns. 

✓ Reviewed our Special Schools Outreach Service to support our mainstream schools 

✓ Ensured that the Fair Access Panel looked at alternative options for families  

✓ Strengthened SEN Early Years support to mainstream nurseries to support the transition to primary 
school. 

✓ Reviewed our Resourced Provision to ensure we have sufficient places to meet the needs of our 
children. 

✓ Developed a Children’s Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) support service for schools 

Page 69

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

3  

✓ Co-produced a Preparing for Adulthood Guide 

✓ Reviewed and refreshed the Graduated Response guidance 

✓ Inclusion team met with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum and SENDIASS to share the advice 
being delivered to schools by the Inclusion Team on remote learning for SEND. This includes coffee 
mornings being offered for the parents/carers of children and young people with Autism Social and 
Communication to support them during lockdown. 

✓ Put in place an Early Help Link Worker for all schools to help them to initiate the Early Help 
assessment 

✓ The Core Ep team will have increased capacity over the next 18 months. This will ensure that 
statutory duties continue to be delivered but also allow for more varied work which promotes the 
inclusion of all children and young people in their chosen educational setting. 

What are we going to do 

• Service Manager for Inclusion to be appointed. 

• Graduated teaching response guidance documents to be in easy read version which will be co-
produced with young people for young people. 

• Further development of Resource Provision in school 

• Support school staff with further skills and training  

• Improve the universal offer supporting emotional wellbeing through quality first teaching for all 
children. 

• Review the model of funding for schools. 

• We will do further work with schools and settings to ensure welcoming and inclusive practice as 
well as further developing our advice and guidance for SEN information 

You Said: “Coordination and communication between 
professionals could be improved” 

• Better communication between all services and agencies involved is needed 

• Some services are providing conflicting advice 

• Professionals don’t always get back to us and keep us updated 

• We are often passed between agencies 

What we have done 

✓ Shared this feedback with our teams and directed professionals to offer a person-centred approach 
when communicating with parents and carers 

✓ Put in place regular bi-monthly Keep in Touch meetings with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum 
and Operational leads  

Page 70

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

4  

✓ Strengthened strategic communication with Council by the Head of Communities and with Health 
by the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) 

✓ Co-production sub group of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board established to ensure 
coordination across the system 

✓ Established a SEND Health Steering Group to ensure coordination of health advices 

✓ EHCP training programme delivered by NASEN to all health and council staff 

✓ A multi agency quality assurance process has been put in place involving all key services and audit 
outcomes fed back through service leads 

✓ Changes made to the EHCP assessment process that includes initial meeting with parents and 
carers and a joint outcomes meeting as well. 

✓ All new EHCP parents/carers are contacted to complete a service user feedback survey 

✓ Casework Officers now share mobile phone numbers when they first contact families which has 
improved communication 

✓ Annual parent /carer survey to capture ongoing issues 

 

What we are going to do 

• Ensure that we continue to update information on the Local Offer  

• Embed service user feedback as standard practice within all services 

You Said: “The short breaks offer is not easy to understand or 
access” 

• We are not aware of the short breaks offer and what we are entitled to 

• Improvements are needed to make mainstream activities inclusive 

• We feel that staff aren't suitably trained to understand and support the child's needs 

What we have done 

✓ We have established reviews of both the Aiming High short breaks offer and the Springbrook 
overnight respite offer 

✓ We have established a task group around Direct Payments  

✓ We have mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a 
Resource Pack 

✓ We have co-produced a refresh of the Local Offer so it is easier to find out the information on 
activities and short breaks 

✓ We have widened access to Public Health Budgets and co-produced leaflets and information 

Page 71

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

5  

What we are going to do 

• We are redesigning the short breaks offer in line with consultation feedback 

• We will consult on and implement an All Age Autism Strategy for the borough 

• We will introduce Autism training for all providers of universal mainstream services 

• We will work with the voluntary sector to ensure gaps in provision can be met 

Page 72

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6  

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 28th May 2021 
 
Title: Equalities Monitoring Analysis for the Southport Golf Links Consultation  
 
Report of:  Martin Sarbutts, Facilities Development & Management Officer, Green 

Sefton 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the equalities monitoring analysis 

for the Southport Golf Links consultation. 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Southport Golf Links Consultation 
 
 3.1 Consultation was undertaken in October-November 2020 to seek the 

views of both golfers and non-players about the current management of 
the golf course, and its potential development in the future. A feedback 
and evaluation report were presented to the Public Engagement and 
Consultation Panel in March 2021, along with a consultation report. 

 
3.2      At this meeting the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

requested a report on the analysis of the equalities monitoring responses 

and a brief outline of the responses is below. 

4.    Equality Monitoring Responses 
 
  

 

8

9
17

39

43

36

22
2 1

Age of Respondents  

not answered 18-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70-79 80-84 85+

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6  
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

The above graph shows the main proportion of respondents was in the age groups 
40-69 which also is the main profile of golf users on the course. 
 
Of those who answered the equalities section, 83% were male and 12% female. 
Again, this is similar to course users and golfers nationally. The remaining 5% didn’t 
answer this question or preferred not to say. 
 
The chart below shows the results of the sexual orientation question with an 
overwhelming majority or answers being heterosexual. 
 

 
 

The next question looked at the gender in which they live compared to that they were 
given at birth. All of the 177 either were in the same gender or didn’t answer. No 
respondent gave and answer indicating that they had altered their gender since birth. 
 
Next came the question regarding their ethnic background. The chart below shows 
the make-up of those responding.  
 

 
 

49% classed themselves as white British with 39% classing themselves as white 
English. This fits with the profile of users on the course as well as the wider golfing 
demographic. 
 
Of those who answered the religious belief question (21%) chose not to, 35% 
deemed themselves to be religious and the remaining 44% felt that they had no 
religious beliefs. 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Heterosexual

Gay

Prefer not to say

Not Answered

2

7

36

49

1 3

1

1
1

Ethnic Background

Not Answered Prefer not to say White English

White British White Irish White Scottish

Mixed Background Polish White Welsh

Page 76

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6  
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

In terms of disabilities declared by those who completed the questionnaire, the 
largest proportion was a long-term health condition. 85% of respondents didn’t have 
a disability and 7% preferred not to say. 
 

 
 
 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make.  
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Note the contents of the report. 

No Disability
85%

Prefer not to say
7%

Mental Health
1%

Autistic 
Spectrum

1%

Long Term Health 
Condition Other

1%

No Disability

Prefer not to say

Mental Health

Autistic Spectrum

Long Term Health Condition

Other

Page 77

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 7 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 28th May 2021 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

Allotments 
 
Report of:  Martin Sarbutts, Facilities Development and Management Officer, x 

2932 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Allotments in Sefton 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Name of Issue you are Consulting On 
 
 3.1 Currently there is no long terms strategy for Allotments in Sefton, the 

previous strategy having expired some time ago. With waiting lists for an 
allotment at an all-time high and turn over on plots limited a new strategy 
is being developed. This consultation will seek the views of plot holders, 
those currently waiting and those not on the current lists to seek their 
views on Sefton’s allotments. 

 
  The views sought will help form the strategy and it is hoped the 

consultation will turn into an annual satisfaction survey of tenants and 
those on the waiting lists. 

 

4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 The consultation will be split into three distinct areas which will target 

differing audiences. The first part will be for all residents in the borough 
and look at how the strategy could help in reducing carbon footprints, 
supporting local charities together with seeking views on the current 
offer.  

   
  The second part of the consultation will be for those residents who are 

on the current waiting lists. This will ask how long they are prepared to 
wait, whether they would share plots and also would they be keen to get 
experience before taking on a plot. This will help us look at methods to 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

decrease waiting times for an allotment as part of any strategy. 
 
  The final part of the consultation will seek the views of current plot 

holders on the service offered. This will cover Officer support, facilities 
offered, questions on how they utilise their plot together with community 
support on site. This will give us a better understanding of the current 
needs of plot holders and also help to guide areas for improvement. 

  
  The consultation will be communicated to existing allotment holders and 

those on the waiting list via the database we hold, where possible this 
will be done via email and posters on site directing users to the 
consultation hub. Where sites have an existing Association, we will use 
this to help promote the consultation too. Alongside this social media and 
press releases will be directing residents to the consultation site to seek 
the views of those not on the waiting lists or currently on a plot. It is 
anticipated that the consultation will be open for a 6 week period during 
June and July. 

     
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 

 

5.1        Consultation results will be published in August/September dependant on 
the number of responses received. This will be in the form of a summary 
report which will go on to assist in the publication of an Allotment 
Strategy. A copy of the report will also be published on the Allotment 
pages of Sefton.gov.uk 

 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make.  
 
7. Recommendations 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Allotments. 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 80

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

 

Annex 

Allotment Survey Questions 
 

Purpose of the survey? To gather information about current satisfaction with facilities and services provided and use 
feedback to develop allotment strategy which will be consulted on before adoption. 
 
Are you an allotment holder?     
Yes  (go to section B already have an allotment / current tenants      
No (go to section A people who don’t have an allotment / Considering taking on an allotment) 

Section A for people who don’t have an allotment: 

Are you on the waiting list for an allotment?   Yes  No 

If yes how long have you been waiting - less than a year, 1-2 years, 3-5 years, longer than 5 years 

How did you learn about sites - website, family member /friend has one / community group/ other please state 

Which site (s) are you interested in please state 

Why do you want an allotment? what do you think benefits will be? Tick all that apply  

To grow own food, to grow other produce, for exercise / health, to meet other people, a place for peace and quiet, to enjoy being 
outdoors,  other please state 

How long are you prepared to wait? - less than a year, 1-2 years, 3-5 years, longer than 5 years 

Would you consider sharing a plot with other tenants?   Yes  No 

 Section B To everyone:  

Do you think the current rental costs in Sefton are reasonable?  Yes  No    

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Would you pay more for: 

a regular skip on site?    Yes  No 

More staff support/supervision   Yes  No 

communal storage on site?   Yes  No 

water supply                Yes  No 

dedicated parking               Yes  No 

more investment into allotment sites  Yes  No 
 
Do you think there should be concessions on rental?   Yes  No   
(e.g lower rates for pensioners, unemployed, etc) 
 
Would you be happy to pay a higher rental to help provide free plots and concessions for others (as above)?  
Yes  No   
 
Do you think there should be free plots for specific groups and individuals? 
(e.g. charities, registered disabled)  Yes  No   
 
Social and natural capital questions (Climate change and biodiversity) 
Which of these environmental considerations do you consider are most important for allotment holders? Please rank 
Reducing carbon footprint – carbon neutral 
Reducing water consumption 
Peat free policy 
Renewable energy  
Composting 
Recycling 
Reducing pollution from use of insecticides / herbicides 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Wildlife friendly practices – eg providing nesting sites and space for pollinators 
 
Health and wellbeing questions 
Which of these health and wellbeing considerations do you consider are most important for allotment holders? Please 
Rank 
Learning opportunities – to encourage environmentally friendly growing, to encourage young people, to share good practice across 
the Sefton allotment community 
Developing community growing  - eg outlets for excess produce eg shared plots for people who might not be able to keep up a full 
plot 
Social opportunities – as above plus communal  events and activities  
Social prescribing – supporting people with health issues and recovering from illness through growing 
Volunteering opportunities 
 
Have you heard about the new Sefton Allotment Forum?  Yes  No 
 
Would you be interested in getting involved in the forum ? (eg as a rep for your site, contributing to ideas and development of 
strategy) Yes  No 
 
Section C 
About your site / plot 
Which allotment site are you a tenant on?  Choose from list   
 
How long have you been a tenant?  0-2 years 2-5 years  5-10 years 10 years + 
 
Thinking about the allotment site you are a tenant on please rate the following facilities / services: 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Item   Very satisfied Satisfied Neither Dissatisfied Very 
dissatisfied 

Not applicable  

Pathways access?       

water supply       

toilet       

composting facility       

communal hut/store       

Growing conditions       

Management of vacant or 
untended plots 

      

waste disposal       

Level of Vandalism/graffiti       

Condition of Fencing 
around individual plots  

      

Security of site       

car parking       

site information       

Fly tipping       

Dog fouling       

vehicle access       

Personal safety       

Flooding       

Other (please state)       

 

verbatum comments here or ask them to pick say the top 3 issues on their site 

 

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

How do you travel to your plot? Car  Public Transport  Walk  Bicycle  Other please 
state 
 
How many hours do you spend on your allotment per week in summer?  1-2hr  2-5hr  6-10hr  11-20hr
  20hrs+ 
 
How many hours do you spend on your allotment per week in winter?     1-2hr  2-5hr  6-10hr  11-20hr
  20hrs+ 
 
What do you grow on your plot? (tick all that apply) Vegetables Fruit  Flowers   Herbs  Fungi  
 
Do you use skips provided on site?   Yes  No 
 
Do you use communal storage on site?   Yes  No 
  
Are you an organic gardener?  Fully Organic  Partially organic  Not Organic  
 
What chemicals / products do you use? None   glypohosate,   slug pellets   peat based compost 
   
other please state 
 
Where do you store chemicals and how? (tick all that apply)  On my plot  at home  don’t use any   locked 
cabinet  shelves shed  
 
Do you compost green waste?  Yes  No 
 
Is there any glass on your plot (part of buildings or stored / tipped)?    Yes  No 

 
If yes where is it located?   Shed eg window, greenhouse panes, cold frame, smashed in ground, stored on plot 

 
 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Do you ever use your plot to store equipment not associated with growing on your allotment?  Yes  No 
 
If yes then why?  Please state 

 
Does your site have an association or federation? Yes  no  Not sure 
 

If yes, do you know who is your site association or federation representative?  Yes  No 
 
Would you like to be more involved with your site ? Yes  No 
 

If yes, what would you be interested in? 
Helping new tenants 
Helping tenants with mobility impairments or other disabilities 
Setting up / joining a site association 
Organising events 
Helping maintain communal areas such paths 
Other please state 

 
Are you happy with how sites are managed and inspected?  Yes  No 
  

If not why not – verbatum comments 
  
 
Do you think allotments should get external accreditation awards? (eg Green Flag Status, as a way to improve standards)
   
Yes  No  Not sure 
  
 
 
 
 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 7



Agenda Item 7 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 

What improvements would you like to see at your site? Please tick all that apply then pick top 5 
 

None 
Toilet facilities 
Horticulture advice  
Perimeter Fencing 
Better access for all 
Better Inspection of plots by COUNCIL? 
Composting facilities 
Tree maintenance 
Fencing around plots 
Other please state 

 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8 

1 | P a g e  

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 28th May 2021 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Ainsdale-on-Sea Vision  
 
Report of:  Mark Shaw, Green Sefton 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information relating to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Ainsdale-on-Sea Vision.  
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Ainsdale-on-Sea Vision 

3.1 The consultation and engagement will address two issues, an open 
consultation on the vision for the Ainsdale gateway, and a more 
informative element about proposed developments due to be 
delivered in summer/autumn 2021.  

3.2 Vision 

3.2.1 The Sefton Coast Plan recognises the need to create high quality 
visitor infrastructure at a number of access points along the Sefton 
Coast, to both drive growth within the visitor economy, provide a 
high-quality visitor experience at these access points and reduce 
visitor pressure on areas of high conservation value. Ainsdale-on-
Sea has been recognised as one of these key access points, known 
as coastal gateways.   

3.2.2  The area contains internationally important dune habitat and species 
and is designated as a SSSI, SAC, SPA, Ramsar site and Local 
Nature Reserve. The area includes natural sand dune, a “good” 
bathing water quality beach and is one of the key bases for Green 
Sefton.  It also contains a number of buildings that are owned by 
Sefton, including Toad Hall and the former Sands public house. 

 
3.2.3  A narrative is being prepared for the Vision that builds on the 

aspirations set out in Sefton 2030 and on comments received as part 
of the consultation on the Sefton Coast Plan. It reflects the approach 

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

2 | P a g e  

 

of acknowledging what has been said and then showing that we 
have listened.  

 
3.2.4  Consultation on Ainsdale-on-Sea was first proposed in winter 2019 

and was due to take place during the summer season of 2020.  Due 
to Covid this consultation did not take place.  However since this 
time other consultation which included Ainsdale has taken place and 
a number of improvements to the area took place in 2020 and more 
are planned for 2021.  Since this consultation was first proposed 
consultation has taken place around the Southport Town Deal bid 
(summer 2020). As a response to theme three: Stronger Economy, 
invest in Ainsdale-on-Sea Visitor Hub, featured as the third most 
popular option. It was suggested that Ainsdale-on-Sea is in need of 
investment. As a SSSI the beach / area attracts a large number of 
visitors and development would need to respect and respond 
sensitively to this environmental context as well as manage visitor 
impacts. The area is very popular for recreational activities and this 
should be encouraged and catered for where possible. Some 
concerns were expressed regarding parking and traffic management 
issues. 

  
3.2.5  As a response to theme four: Green and Clean, securing investment 

in the leisure assets at Ainsdale-on-Sea and facilities serving the 
coastal attractions again featured strongly as the third most popular 
option in the responses received.  It was recognised by a large 
number of respondents that the beachfront at Ainsdale-on-Sea is in 
need of investment to improve its appearance and the way that it 
functions. Some respondents expressed concern over the potential 
overdevelopment and the impact this could have on highways, 
parking and the quality of the environment and nature.  

 
3.2.6  This consultation proposal for Ainsdale wants to build on the 

comments that came back through the Town Deal consultation, 
reflect the operational changes that have taken place over the last 12 
months and the developments planned for the area in 2021, and 
gauge opinion on potential future developments. 

 
3.2.7  Following the consultation the plan is to start looking at the next 

stages for development in the area, based on areas of priority.  This 
phased development will realise the potential of Ainsdale-on-Sea 
and reflect the aspirations, opportunities and constraints associated 
with this important area. 

 
3.2.8  It also aims to demonstrate to key partners that the Council remains 

committed to managing recreation pressure on the Sefton Coast in a 
way that fulfils its legal duties under the Habitats Regulations to 
protect the internationally important nature sites on the Sefton Coast.   

 
3.2.9 A piece of work planned for later in 2021,  a  customer satisfaction 

survey for visitors to parks and coastal areas across Sefton, would 

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

3 | P a g e  

 

cover similar topics / are complimentary and it is proposed that the 2 
run in tandem to prevent consultation fatigue and maximise staff 
resources The two could be linked online and visitors to Ainsdale-on-
Sea would be asked the additional Vision questions. 

 
3.3 Operational 
 
3.3.1 In keeping with the phased approach previously mentioned, during 

2020 a number of operational changes took place in Ainsdale-on-
Sea.  These included the installation of alligator teeth to discourage 
people from driving onto the beach of an evening.  Several new 
initiatives were also trialled such as employing additional staff as 
visitor ‘ambassadors’, offering free bin bags at beaches, and 
providing large ‘euro’ bins on sites to complement existing cleansing 
operations.  Portaloos were also installed for the 2020 season to 
meet the Covid -19 H&S requirements.   

 
3.3.2 These operational changes, together with information gathered from 

visitors and partners, have informed the proposals moving forward 
including the second phase of improvements currently in 
development / to be provided during 2021 including: 

▪ External artwork on Toad Hall  
▪ Installation of temporary toilets and looking at longer term 

toilet improvements  
▪ A new temporary food and drink facility to be trialled in the 

picnic area 
▪ Improved off-beach car parking with pedestrian and cycle 

access improvements and EV charging points.  

An informative consultation on these improvements will form part of 
the consultation process, signposting the opportunity to comment 
through the planning process on the improvement plans eg via 
ambassadors and on-site information   

 

3.3.5 Approval has been given for Capital Prudential borrowing, over 10 

years, of £352,000.  The improved off-beach car parking facility will 

generate a new income to Green Sefton that would cover all 

operational and revenue costs for the project. Mitigations will be 

expected from Natural England as part of their consent for such 

works to go ahead.  These have been allowed for in the costs e.g. 

additional staff on site to engage with visitors and encourage 

appropriate behaviour.  These works are expected to generate a 

surplus which will be re-invested in improving on site facilities further.  

 
4.    The Consultation 

  
4.1   Aims & Objectives 
 
4.1.1  To ask people about their views on Ainsdale-on-Sea, what works 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

4 | P a g e  

 

well, what could be improved, what they think the area should be in 
the future.  It will also inform people about the changes that will be 
delivered in the area in 2021. 

 
4.1.2  Following the consultation the plan is to start looking at the next 

stages for development in the area, based on areas of priority.  This 
phased development will realise the potential of Ainsdale on Sea 
and reflect the aspirations, opportunities and constraints associated 
with this important area. 

 
4.1.3  It also aims to demonstrate to key partners that the Council remains 

committed to managing recreation pressure on the Sefton Coast in 
a way which fulfils its legal duties under the Habitats Regulations to 
protect the internationally important nature sites on the Sefton 
Coast.   

 
4.1.4  A questionnaire will be produced that will be available on the Sefton 

 Council Website, through local groups and through staff on site. This 
may run in tandem with a wider Customer Satisfaction questionnaire 
to be completed at the same time. 

 
4.1.5  The consultation will run from 1st June 2021 until 30th September 

2021 to capture the main visitor season . 
 
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 

 

        5.1        A ‘You Said, We Did’ report will be completed once the consultation is     
finished.  This report will be shared with the Consultation and Engagement 
Panel and will then be available via the Sefton website, on-site and will be 
shared with local groups. 

 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 

 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 
         contained in this report and has no comments to make.  

 
7. Recommendations 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Ainsdale-on-Sea Vision. 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

 

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 9 

1 

 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 28th May 2021 
 
Title: Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – Equalities Monitoring 
 
Report of:  Paul McCann, VCF and Equalities 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To seek the opinion of the panel on the content of the equalities 

monitoring questions which are attached to consultations. This will be 
considered at the next meeting of the Corporate Equality Group. 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Equalities Monitoring 
 
 3.1 The Equality Act 2010 lists nine protected characteristics and also 

contains the Public Sector Equality Duty. The aim of the duty is to 
integrate the ‘consideration of advancement of equality into the day-to-
day business of all bodies subject to the duty’ (EHRC Technical 
Guidance). The duty requires that bodies subject to the duty must 
have due regard to the impact of a policy or service on people who 
possess one or more of the protected characteristics. In order to 
facilitate this and gather the necessary information, bodies carry out 
equality monitoring. 

 
4.    Data Protection 
 
 4.1 The information gathered by the equalities monitoring process would 

be considered to be sensitive information under data protection 
legislation and there are conditions attached to the collection and use 
of this information. One of the conditions is that the collection of the 
information is required by law. The relevant law in this case would be 
the Equality Act 2010, which would allow the collection of data around 
the nine protected characteristics in relation to satisfying the Public 
Sector Equality Duty. 

 
5.      Current Equalities Monitoring Questions and Suggested Amendments 

 

        5.1        Appendix A gives the current equalities monitoring questions with 
comments and guidance from the Data Protection Officer. 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

2 

5.2 Members of the Corporate Equality Group have raised a query about 
whether all equalities monitoring questions have to be asked in all 
cases, or if it is possible to ask only those questions which are 
considered relevant to the policy or function being consulted on. The 
Data Protection Officer has stated that if a department/service area 
cannot demonstrate necessity for collecting a particular attribute 
of personal data then they should not collect it.  

 
         5.3 The Equality Act 2010 provides a legal basis to collect the equalities 

monitoring information, but the department carrying out the 
consultation still needs to demonstrate the necessity for gathering 
the information. If the Panel consider that departments can remove 
one or more questions they could recommend that the department 
doing so provides a full explanation of why this is the case and how 
the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty can still be satisfied 
without that information. 

 
         5.4 The lawful basis for collecting the information needs to be detailed in 

the privacy notice. 
 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make.  
 
7. Recommendations 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Note the comments on the equality monitoring questions 
 
  b) Provide any information which they wish to be considered by the 

Corporate Equality Group 
 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9a 

  1 

 

Note for Officers carrying out consultation – please note that you will need to include a 
Privacy Notice statement and questions on consent and date of consent prior to asking 
people to complete the equality monitoring questions. 
 
Privacy notice should state the lawful basis for collecting and processing the data. In most 
cases it will be that the information is being gathered to assist the Council in meeting its 
public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.  

 
About You 
 
These questions are optional.  You can complete as much or as little as you wish. 
 

1. Please tell us the first part of your postcode  

(the first 3 or 4 letters and numbers) 
 

This question does not relate to a protected characteristic so the purpose of 
collecting this data should be explained in the privacy notice. 

 
2. How old are you? 

 
 
 

Under 18  18 - 29  30 - 39 

 
 

40 - 49  50 - 59  60 - 69 

 
 

70 - 79  80 - 84  85+ 

 
 

Prefer not 
to say 

    

 
 
3. Are you  
  

 
 

Male  Female  Non-binary 

 
 

Prefer not to 
say 

Other 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-- 

 
The protected characteristic in this case is ‘sex’ and the options are male and female. 
Providing additional answer options that do not correspond with this protected 
characteristic does not have a legal basis in terms of satisfying the PSED. ONS recently 
changed Census guidance on a similar question after court action. 
 
The response options should be changed to ‘male’, ‘female’ and ‘prefer not to say’. 
 
4. Do you live in the gender you were given at birth? 
 

 Yes  No  Prefer not to say 

 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9a 
 

2 
 

 

The protected characteristic in this case is ‘gender reassignment’. Section 7 (1) of the act 
states that: 
 

‘A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is 
proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) 
for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological or other 
attributes of sex.’ 

 
Recommendation is that the question text refers to section 7 (1) and the definition above and 
asks if the person considers themselves to have that protected characteristic with the possible 
responses of yes/no/prefer not to say. This question would be similar to the disability question 
which asks the respondent to state whether they meet the definition. 
 
A recent decision of the Employment Tribunal (Taylor v Jaguar Land Rover) held that the 
definition above also includes people who are non-binary or gender-fluid, so if we gave a 
range of possible responses rather than yes/no these could also be included and could be 
included in the definition of what is covered by the protected characteristic. 
 
5. How would you describe your sexual orientation? 
 
 

 Heterosexual/straight  Gay 

 Lesbian  Bisexual 

 Prefer not to say Other:……………………………………………….. 

 
6. A carer is someone who provides unpaid support/care for a family member, friend 

etc who needs help with their day-to-day life; because they are disabled, have a 
long-term illness or they are elderly. 

 
Are you a carer? 

  
 
 

No  Yes, 20 – 49 hours per week 

 
 

Yes, 1- 19 hours a week  Yes, 50 or more hours a 
week 

 
 

Prefer not to say   

 
This is not a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010. The lawful purpose for 
asking this question is not clear. 
 
7. Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply): 
 

 
 

Physical Impairment  Visual impairment 

 
 

Learning Difficulty  Hearing impairment/deaf 

 
 

Learning Disability  Long-term illness that affects 
your daily life 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9a 
 

3 
 

 

 
 

Autism/Asperger’s  Dementia 

 
 

Mental health condition            Prefer not to say 

 
 
Please read the following statement … 
 
8. If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes or HIV this 

would be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation.  Do you consider yourself to be 
‘disabled’? 

 

 
 

Yes  No  Prefer not to say 

 
9. What is your religion/belief? 
 
 

 
 

  No          
religion/belief 

 Christian  Hindu 

 
 

Muslim  Jewish  Sikh 

 
 

Prefer not to say Other religion/belief: …………………………………….. 
 

 
10. Ethnicity – do you identify as:  
 
  Prefer not to say 
 

Asian or Asian British 

 

 
 

  Indian  Bangladeshi  Pakistani  Black 

 
 

Chinese    Other Asian background 
……………………………………………………………… 

 
Black or Black British 

  

 African  Caribbean   Other black background 

…………………………………………. 
 British           Asian 

 
 Mixed Ethnic Background 
 

 White and Black Caribbean  White and Black African 

 White and Asian Other mixed background: 

…………………………………………………. 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9a 
 

4 
 

 

White 
 

 Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern 

Irish/British 

 Irish 

Other white background: …………………………………………………........ 

 
     Gypsy/Irish Traveller           Roma 
 
 
  
 The protected characteristic is ‘race’ and covers colour, nationality and ethnic or 
national origins. It includes Romany Gypsies and Irish Travellers (which are included in the 
response options) and also Sikhs and Jews (which are not in this section but are in the 
religion/belief section) 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th March 2021
	5 Feedback and Evaluation report - SEND Spring 2021 Parent and Carer Survey
	4.4 A summary from the quantitative analysis and qualitative feedback is as follows:
	Item 5a SEND Parent and Carer Survey 2021 Report V1.1 Final and Approved
	Item 5b SEND Feedback flyer March 2021 [Accessible]

	6 Equalities Monitoring Analysis for the Southport Golf Links Consultation
	7 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Allotments
	8 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Ainsdale-on-Sea Vision
	9 Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Equalities Monitoring
	Item 9a Report to consultation standards panel re equalities monitoring Appendix A V2


